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To Our Shareholders

We had successful Fiscal 2012 with record sales and profits despite the economic

headwinds largely influenced by the uncertainty in Europe Sales increased from the prior year

in both silicon metal and silicon-based alloys as average selling prices increased and shipments

remained stable We operated at full production capacity during the year with normal

maintenance outages as customer demand remained solid

Major highlights

We acquired Alden Resources the leading provider of specialty low ash coal for the

silicon metal and silicon-based alloy industries Specialty low ash coal is key ingredient in the

production of silicon metal and high purity ferrosilicon The acquisition of Alden gives us

consistent long-term and low-cost supply of this key raw material to support our continued

growth worldwide Alden is presently supplying the bulk of our coal needs in the US and Canada

and is also selling meaningful amount of coal to third parties

We also acquired 51% stake in Quebec Silicon Canadas only producer of silicon

metal We have already made improvements and lowered costs at the plant by among other

things reducing personnel and enhancing operating procedures while increasing production

aided mainly by the use of coal from Alden

We closed on new $300 million syndicated credit facility This facility refinanced

existing debt and will be available to finance acquisitions growth initiatives stock buy-backs

working capital and for general corporate purposes

We continue to focus on lowering our costs and improving operating efficiencies as well

as exploring strategic growth opportunities that will enhance shareholder value

Thank you for your continued support

Sincerely

Jeff Bradley

Chief Executive Officer
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PART

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements as that term is used in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 The

forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled Business Risk Factors and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations In some cases you can identif forward-looking statements by terms such as anticipates believes could estimates

expects intends may plans potential predicts projects should will would and similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking

statements These statements involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results performance or achievements to

be materially different from any future results performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements Forward-looking statements

include statements about

the anticipated benefits and risks associated with our business strategy

our future operating results and the future value of our common stock

the anticipated size or trends of the markets in which we compete and the anticipated competition in those markets

our ability to attract customers in cost-efficient manner

our ability to attract and retain qualified management personnel

our future capital requirements and our ability to satisfy our capital needs

the potential for additional issuances of our securities and

the possibility of future acquisitions of businesses or assets

Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and subject to risks and uncertainties including

but not limited to

the historic cyclicality of the metals industry and the attendant swings in market price and demand

increases in energy costs and the effect on our cost of production

disruptions in the supply of power

availability
of raw materials or transportation

cost of raw material inputs and our ability to pass along those costs to customers

the concentration of our sales to limited number of customers and the potential loss of portion of sales to those customers

changes in laws protecting U.S companies froni unfair foreign competition

integration and development of prior and future acquisitions and

other risks described from time to time in our filings with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC including the risks discussed under

the heading Risk Factors in this Annual Report

Given these uncertainties you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements Also forward-looking statements represent our estimates and

assumptions only as of the date the statements are made You should read this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents that we have filed as exhibits

completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect Except as required by law we assume no

obligation to update any forward-looking statements publicly or to update the reasons actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in any forward-

looking statements even if new information becomes available in the future

Item Business

Overview

Globe Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies GSM the Company we us or our is one of the worlds largest and most efficient producers of silicon

metal and silicon-based alloys with approximately 120000 metric tons MT of silicon metal capacity excluding Dow Coming Corporations portion of the capacity

of our Alloy West Virginia plant and our Becancour Quebec plant and 120000 MT of silicon-based alloys capacity Silicon metal our principal product is used as

primary raw material in making silicone compounds aluminum and polysilicon Our silicon-based alloys are used as raw materials in making steel automotive

components and ductile iron We control the supply of most of our raw materials and we capture recycle and sell most of the by-products generated in our production

p1
ocesses

Our products are currently produced in seven principal operating facilities located in the United States Canada and Argentina Additionally we operate facilities

in Poland and China Our flexible manufacturing capabilities allow us to optimize production and focus on products that enhance profitability We also benefit from

the lowest average operating costs of any large Western World producer of silicon metal according to CRU International Limited CRU leading metals industry

consultant CRU defines Western World as all countries supplying or consuming silicon metal with the exception of China and the former republics of the Soviet

Union including Russia



Fiscal 2012 was successful and active year for us We had record year of sales and profits despite the economic headwinds largely caused by the uncertainty in

Europe Sales and profits grew from the prior year as average selling prices increased and shipments remained stable Average prices increased for both silicon metal

and silicon-based alloys In July 2011 we acquired Alden Resources North Americas leading miner of specialty metallurgical coal for the silicon and silicon-based

alloy industries and in June 2012 we acquired 51% interest in Quebec Silicon 47000 MT silicon metal plant in Canada and closed on $300 million holding

company revolving credit facility
These transactions as described below will serve to broaden our product mix improve our profitability and position us for

significant continued future growth

In July 2011 we closed on the acquisition of Alden Resources LLC North Americas leading miner processor and supplier of specialty metallurgical coal to

the silicon and silicon-based alloys industries Specialty metallurgical coal is key ingredient in the production of silicon metal Alden is major supplier of this

type of specialty metallurgical coal to GSM and other silicon producers By acquiring Alden we secured stable long-term and low-cost supply of this key raw

material to support continued growth worldwide while maintaining Aldens position as leading supplier to other silicon and silicon-based alloy producers

Charcoal where available is more costly alternative to coal and whose cost Globe would have to incur without adequate coal supplies Alden

has approximately 21 million tons of reserves of specialty metallurgical coal used predominately in the silicon and silicon-based alloy industries Alden is

currently operating six mines in Kentucky Alden also owns and operates coal preparation plant in eastern Kentucky that washes and prepares the coal The

plant is newly upgraded and capable of processing over 2.5 million tons of coal per year Alden is presently supplying the bulk of our coal needs at our plants in

the US and Canada and is beginning to sell meaningful amount of coal to third parties

In June 2012 we closed on the acquisition of the silicon metal assets of Becancour Silicon Inc including its 51% interest in Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership

collectively known as Quebec Silicon 47000 metric ton silicon metal plant as well as certain working capital assets Globe operates the silicon metal plant

consolidates the results and purchases approximately 51% of its finished goods output at price approximately equal to the fully loaded cost of production and

sells the material to third party customers Dow Corning Corporation Dow Corning has the right to purchase the other 49% of the plants output at price

approximately equal to the
fully

loaded cost of production This arrangement is similar to the Companys existing joint venture with Dow Corning at its Alloy

West Virginia plant Globe believes that it can achieve meaningful cost reductions and operating efficiencies at the plant primarily involving raw materials and

processes which should benefit Globe and Dow Corning We have already made certain improvements and cost reductions at the plant by supplying Alden coal

reducing employee headcount and enhancing operating procedures

In May 2012 we closed on new $300000000 syndicated credit
facility

The facility refinanced existing debt and closing costs of $96550000 and along with

the Companys cash balances it can be used to finance acquisitions growth initiatives stock buy-backs working capital
and for general corporate

purposes The facility is revolving loan and does not require borrowing base It has five-year term and at the current leverage ratio carries an interest rate

of LIBOR plus .75% The loan has certain financial covenants negative covenants and restrictions

Average selling prices increased 8% from our prior year with an 11% increase in silicon metal and 6% increase in silicon-based alloys Volumes remained

stable from year to year Average selling prices declined beginning in the third fiscal quarter of 2012 as our annual silicon metal contracts renewed at lower prices

than the prior calendar year and silicon-based alloy prices declined primarily due to decreases in indices In addition portion of our annual silicon metal contracts

are priced based on indexes which caused an additional decline in average selling prices in the fourth quarter

We are presently running all of our furnaces at full capacity subject to planned maintenance outages Demand for silicon metal is improving based on-end user

demand for silicones which are additives to hundreds of products such as cosmetics textiles paints and coatings and by growing demand for polysilicon which is

used to produce photovoltaic solar cells and semiconductors Major silicone and polysilicon producers are operating at solid capacity with good expectations for

future growth and significant new polysilicon capacity is being built in the United States Demand and pricing for silicon-based alloys is largely driven by end user

requirements for our mostly customized product offerings from specialty steel producers and foundries Major customers are growing to support increased auto

production domestically and overseas and for other uses of specialty steel and castings

Business segments

GM

GMI currently operates six principal production facilities in the United States located in Beverly Ohio Alloy West Virginia Selma Alabama Niagara Falls

New York and Bridgeport Alabama and one production facility
in Canada located in Becancour Quebec GMI also operates six coal mines and coal preparation

plant in Kentucky and an open-pit quartzite mine in Alabama

Globe Metais

Globe Metais is distributor of silicon metal manufactured in Brazil This segment includes the historical Brazilian manufacturing operations comprised of

manufacturing plant in Breu Branco mining operations and forest reserves which were sold on November 2009 Subsequent to this divestiture Globe Metais net

sales relate only to the fulfillment of certain retained customer contracts which were completed as of December 2010

Globe Metales

Globe Metales operates production facility
in Mendoza Argentina and cored-wire fabrication facility in San Luis Argentina Globe Metales specializes in

producing silicon-based alloy products either in lump form or in cored-wire delivery method preferred by some manufacturers of steel ductile iron machine and

auto parts and industrial pipe

Solsil

Solsil is continuing to develop its technology to produce upgraded metallurgical grade silicon metal UMG manufactured through proprietary metallurgical

process which is primarily used in silicon-based photovoltaic solar cells Solsil is located in Beverly Ohio and is currently focused on research and development

projects and is not producing material for commercial sale We own 97.25% interest in Solsil Inc Solsil

Corporate

The corporate office located in New York New York includes general expenses investments and related investment income

Other

Ningxia Yonvey Coal Industrial Co Ltd Yonvey Yonvey produces carbon electrodes an important input in our production process at production facility in

Shizuishan in the Ningxia l-Iui Autonomous Region of China We currently consume internally the majority of Yonveys output of electrodes We hold 70%

ownership interest in Yonvcy

Uliracore Poiska Sp.z.o.o UCP UCP produces cored-wire silicon-based alloy products The fabrication facility
is located in Police in northern Poland

See our June 30 2012 consolidated financial statements for financial information with respect to our se ments
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We believe that we have eost advantage in most of our long-term power supply contracts Our power supply contracts result in stable favorably priced long-

term commitments of power at reasonable rates In West Virginia we have contract with Brooklield Energy to provide approximately 45% of our power needs from

Jedicated hydroelectric facility at fixed rate through December 2021 The remainder of our power needs in West Virginia Ohio and Alabama are sourccd through

contracts that provide tariff rates at historically competitive levels In connection with the reopening of our Niagara Falls New York plant and as an incentive to

reopen the plant we obtained public-sector package including 40 megawatts of hydropower through 2013 which was subsequently extended to 2020 We have

entered into power hedge agreements ending in June 2013 for approximately 20% of the total power required by our Niagara Falls New York plant These hedges

cover our expected needs not supplied by the long-term power contract over the term of the hedge agreements

Sales and Marketing Activities

Our silicon metal is typically sold through annual contracts which serve to lock in volumes and prices Multi-year contracts have historically represented

meaningful portion of our silicon metal sales however substantially all silicon metal multi-year contracts expired at the end of calendar 2010 We have entered into

annual calendar 2012 contracts for the bulk of our capacity These agreements arc largely fixed priced with approximately 30% being priced based on an index

with mix of firm volume commitments and requirements contracts

Our marketing strategy is to maximize profitability by varying the balance of our product mix among the various silicon-based alloys and silicon metal Our

products are marketed directly by our own marketing staff located in Buenos Aires Argentina Police Poland and at various locations in the United States and who

work together to optimize the marketing efforts The marketing staff is supported by our Technical Services Manager who supports the sales representatives by

advising foundry customers on how to improve their processes using our products

We also employ customer service representatives Order receiving entry shipment coordination and customer service is handled primarily from the Beverly Ohio

facility for our U.S operations and in Buenos Aires Argentina and Police Poland for our non U.S operations In addition to our direct sales force we sell through

distributors in various U.S regions Canada Southern and Northern Mexico Australia South America and Europe

We maintain credit insurance for the majority of our customer receivables to mitigate collection risk

Competition

The silicon metal and silicon-based alloy markets are capital intensive and competitive Our primary competitors are Elkem AS owned by China National

Bluesiar Group Co Ltd and Grupo Ferroatlantica S.L In addition we also face competition from other companies such as Rima Industrial SA and Ligas de

Aluniino SA as well as producers in China and the former republics of the Soviet Union We have historically proven to be highly eflicient low cost producer with

competitive pricing and manufacturing processes that capture most of our production by-products for reuse or resale We also have the flexibility to adapt to current

irarket demands by switching certain furnaces between silicon-based alloy and silicon metal production with economical switching costs We face continual threats

from existing and new competition Nonetheless certain factors can affect the ability of competition to enter or expand These factors include lead time of three to

fise years to obtain the necessary governmental approvals and construction completion ii construction costs iiithe need to situate manufacturing facility

pnximate to raw material sources and iv energy supply for manufacturing purposes

Competitive Strengths

Wc believe that we possess number of conipctitivc strengths that position us well to continue as one of the leading global suppliers of silicon metal and silicon

biscd alloys

Leading Market Positions We hold leading market shares in majority of our products. Our silicon metal capacity of approximately 120000 MT annually

excluding Dow Cornings portion of the capacity of our Alloy West Virginia plant and our Becancour Quebec plant represents approximately 12% of the

total Western World capacity including 58% of total capacity and 100% of merchant capacity in North America We estimate that we have approximately

20% Western World capacity for magnesium ferrosilicon including 50% capacity in North America and arc one of only six suppliers of calcium silicon in the

Western World with estimated 18% capacity

Low Coal Producer We have been recognized by CRU as the lowest average operating cost large silicon metal producer in the Western World Currently

CRU lists our four silicon metal manufacturing facilities as being among CRUs five most cost efficient silicon metal manufacturing facilities in the Western

World of which three being the lowest cost facilities

Highly Variable Cost Structure We operate with largely variable cost of production and have the
ability to rapidly turn furnaces on and off to react to

changes in customer demand During the global economic recession in 2008-2009 we were able to quickly idle certain furnaces as demand declined and then

quickly re-start them at minimal cost as demand returned

Long-Term Power Contracts We also believe that we have cost advantage in our long-term power supply contracts which provide significant portion of

our power needs These power supply contracts result in stable favorably priced long-term commitments of power at reasonable rates

S/able Raw Material Supply Through Captive Mines The acquisition of Alden Resources provides stable and long-term supply of low ash metallurgical

grade coal supplying substantial portion of our requirements to our operations in the U.S and Canada We have quartz mining operations located in

Billingsley Alabama for which we currently possess long-term lease mining rights These mines supply our U.S plants with majority of our requirements

for quartzitc the principal raw material used in the manufacturing of our products We believe that these mines taken together with additional leasing

opportunities in the vicinity should cover our needs well into the future We have also obtained captive supply of electrodes an important input in our

manufacturing process through our ownership in Yonvcy

EffIcient and Lnvironmentally Sensitive By-Product Usage We utilize or sell most of our manufacturing processes by-products which reduces costs and

limits environmental Impact

Diverse Products and Markets We sell our products to wide variety of industries and to companies in over 30 countries We believe that our diverse

product and geographic end-market profile provides us with numerous growth opportunities and should help insulate us from economic downturns occurring

in any individual industry or geographic region however global macroeconomic factors will impact the effectiveness of our industrial and geographical

diversity strategy See note 21 Operating Segnients to our June 30 2012 consolidated financial statements for additional information

Experienced highly Qualified Management Team We have assembled highly qualified management team with over 50 years of combined experience in

the metals industry among our top four executives Alan Kestenbaum our Executive Chairman Jeff Bradley our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating

Oflicer Malcolm Appelbaum our Chief Financial Officer and Stephen Lebowitz our Chief Legal Officer have over 22 27 and years of experience

respectively in metals industries We believe that our management team has the operational and technical skill to continue to operate our business at world

class levels of efficiency and to consistently produce silicon metal and silicon-based alloys



Business Strategy

Focus on Core Businesses We differentiate ourselves on the basis of our technical expertise and high product quality and use these capabilities to retain

existing accounts and cultivate new business As part of this strategy we are focusing our production and sales efforts on our silicon metals and silicon-based

alloys to end markets where we may achieve the highest profitability We continue to evaluate our core business strategy and may divest certain non-core and

lower margin businesses to improve our financial and operational results

Continue to Rationalize Costs to Meet Current Levels of Demand We arc focused on operating in cost effective manner and continue to focus on cost

control in order to improve our profitability Our largely variable cost of production should allow us to remain profitable during periods of reduced demand

Capitalize on Market Conditions In fiscal year 2010 we reopened our Niagara Falls New York and Selma Alabama plants and are currently running all

furnaces at full capacity other than planned maintenance outages We remain focused on improving furnace uptime and production output

Maintain Low Cost Position While Controlling inputs We intend to maintain our position as one of the most cost-efficient producers of silicon metal in the

world by continuing to control the cost of the process inputs through our captive sources and long-term supply contracts We continue to focus on reducing our

fixed costs in order to reduce costs per MT of silicon metal and silicon-based alloy sold

Continue Pursuing Strategic Acquisition Opportunities We continue to pursue complementary acquisitions at appropriate valuations We are actively

reviewing several possible transactions to expand our strategic capabilities and leverage our products and operations We intend to build on our history of

successful acquisitions by continuing to evaluate attractive acquisition opportunities for the purpose of increasing our capacity increasing our access to raw

materials and other inputs and acquiring further refined products for our customers Our focus is on investing globally in companies technologies or products

that complement and/or diversify our business or product offerings In particular we will consider acquisitions or investments that will enable us to leverage

our expertise in silicon metal and silicon-based alloy products and to grow in these markets as well as enable us to enter new markets or sell new products We

believe our overall metallurgical expertise and skills in lean production technologies position us well for future growth

Leverage Flexible Manuf/icturing and Expand Other Lines of Business We will leverage our flexible manufacturing capabilities to optimize the product mix

produced while expanding the products we offer Additionally we can leverage our broad geographic manufacturing reach to ensure that production of

specific
metals is in the most appropriate facility/region Besides our principal silicon metal products we have the capability to produce silicon-based alloys

such as ferrosilicon and silicomanganese using the same facilities Our business philosophy is to allocate our furnace capacity to the products which we expect

will improve profitability

Leverage Synergies Among Units According to CRU we currently have the three lowest cost and four of the five lowest cost silicon metal manufacturing

facilities in the Western World Additionally according to CRU the average operating cost of our four silicon metal production facilities is approximately

11.7% lower than the Western World weighted average cost We seek to leverage each of our facilities best practices and apply them across our system

Employees

As of June 30 2012 we had 1493 employees We have 984 employees in the United States 204 employees in Canada 160 employees in Argentina

29 employees in Poland and 116 employees in China Our total employees consist of 458 salaried employees and 1035 hourly employees and include 665 unionized

workers This compares to 1213 employees at June 30 2011

We have not experienced any work stoppages and consider our relations with our employees to be good Our hourly employees at our Selma Alabama facility are

covered by collective bargaining agreement with the Industrial Division of the Communications Workers of America under contract running through July 31
2013 Our hourly employees at our Alloy West Virginia Niagara Falls New York and Bridgeport Alabama facilities are covered by collective bargaining

agreements with The United Steel Paper and Forestry Rubber Manufacturing Energy Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union under contracts

running through April 27 2014 July 29 2014 and March 31 2015 respectively Union employees in Argentina are working under contract running through

April 30 2013 Union employees in Canada are working under contract running through April 2013 Our operations in Poland and China are not unionized

Research and Eevelopment

Our primary research and development activities are concentrated in our Solsil business unit Solsil is continuing to develop its technology to produce upgraded

metallurgical grade silicon manufactured through proprietary metallurgical process and which is primarily used in silicon-based photovoltaic solar cells Solsil

conducts research and development activities designed to improve the purity of its silicon The business performs experiments including continuous batch

modifications with the goal of improving efficiencies lowering costs and developing new products that we expect will meet the needs of the photovoltaic solar

industry These activities are performed at Solsils operations which are currently located within our facility at Beverly Ohio Our success in producing UMG for the

solar industry is expected to help lower the production cost of photovoltaic solar cells and increase the overall affordability of the technology

Proprietary Rights and Licensing

The majority of our intellectual property relates to process design and proprietary know-how Our intellectual property strategy
is focused on developing and

protecting proprietary know-how and trade secrets which are maintained through employee and third-party confidentiality agreements and physical security

measures Although we have some patented technology our businesses or profitability
does not rely fundamentally upon such technology

Regulatory Matters

We operate facilities in the U.S and abroad which are subject to foreign federal national state provincial and local environmental health and
safety

laws and

regulations including among others those governing the discharge of materials into the environment hazardous substances land usc reclamation and remcdiation

and the health and safety of our employees These laws and regulations require us to obtain from governmental authorities permits to conduct certain regulated

activities which permits may be subject to modification or revocation by such authorities

We arc subject to the risk that we have not been or will not be at all times in complete compliance with such laws regulations and permits Failure to comply with

these laws regulations and permits may result in the assessment of administrative civil and criminal penalties or other sanctions by regulators the imposition of

remedial obligations the issuance of injunctions limiting or preventing our activities and other liabilities Under these laws regulations and permits we could also be

held liable for any and all consequences arising out of human exposure to hazardous substances or environmental damage we may cause or that relates to our

operations or properties Environmental health and safety laws are likely to become more stringent in the future Our costs of complying with current and future

environmental health and safety laws and our liabilities
arising

from past or future releases of or exposure to hazardous substances may adversely affect our

business results of operations and financial condition



There are variety of laws and regulations in place or being considered at the iniemational federal regional state provincial and local levels of govemment that

rstrict or are reasonably likely to restrict the emission of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases These legislative and regulatory developments may cause us to

incur material costs to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions from our operations through additional environmental control equipment or retiring and replacing

existing equipment or to obtain emission allowance credits or result in the ineurrence of material taxes fees or othcr govemmental impositions on account of such

emissions In addition such developments may have indirect impacts on our operations which could be material For example they may impose significant additional

costs or limitations on electricity generators which could result in material increase in our energy costs

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous

sdbstances In addition to cleanup cost recovery or compensatory actions brought by foreign federal state provincial and local agencies neighbors employees or

other third parties could make personal injury property damage or other private claims relating to the presence or release of hazardous substances Environmental

laws often impose liability even if the owner or operator did not know ol or was not responsible for the release of hazardous substances Persons who arrange for the

disposal or treatment of hazardous substances also may be responsible for the cost of removal or remediation of these substances Such persons can be responsible for

removal and remediation costs even if they never owned or operated the disposal or treatment facility In addition such owners or operators of real property and

persons who arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances can be held responsible for damages to natural resources

Soil or groundwater contamination resulting from historical ongoing or nearby activities is present at certain of our current and historical properties and

additional contamination may be discovered at such properties in the future Based on currently available information we do not believe that any costs or liabilities

rlating to such contamination will have material adverse effect on our financial condition results of operations or liquidity

Under current federal black lung benefits legislation each coal mine operator is required to make certain payments of black lung benefits or contributions to

current and former coal miners totally disabled from black lung disease pneumoconmosis

certain survivors of miner who dies from black lung disease or pneumoconiosis and

trust fund for the payment of benefits and medical expenses to claimants whose last mine employment was before January 1970 where no responsible coal

mine operator has been identified for claims where miners last coal employment was aller December 31 1969 or where the responsible coal mine operator

has defaulted on the payment of such benefits The trust fund is funded by an excise tax on U.S production of up to $1.10 per ton for deep mined coal and up to

$0.55 per ton for surface-mined coal neither amount to exceed 4.4% of the gross sales price

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act PPACA which was implemented in 2010 made two changes to the Federal

Itlack Lung Benefits Act First it provided changes to the legal criteria used to assess and award claims by creating legal

resumption that miners are entitled to benefits if they have worked at least 15 years in underground coal mines or in similar

onditions and suffer from totally disabling lung disease To rebut this presumption coal company would have to prove that miner did not have black lung or

tiat the disease was not caused by the miners work Second it changed the law so black lung benefits will continue to be paid to dependent survivors when the miner

f.lsscs away regardless of the cause of the miners death In addition to the federal legislation we are also liable under various state statutes for black lung claims

Other Information

Globe Specialty Metals Inc was incorporated in December 2004 pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware under the name International Metal Enterprises

Inc for the initial purpose to serve as vehicle for the acquisition of companies operating in the metals and mining industries In November 2006 we changed our

name to Globe Specialty Metals Inc

Our internet wcbsite address is www.glbsm.com Copies of the following reports are available free of charge through the internet website as soon as reasonably

practicable atler they have been filed with or furnished to the SEC pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Annual

ltcport on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form I0.-Q current reports on Form 8-K any amendments to such reports and proxy statements Information on the

ivebsite does not constitute part of this or any other report filed with or furnished to the SEC



Item IA Risk Factors

You should consider and read careful/v all of the risks and uncertainties described below together with all of the other infbrmation contained in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K including the consolidated jinancial statements and the related notes to consolidated financial statements If any of the following events

actually occur our business business prospects fInancial condition results of operations or cash flows could he materially afficted In any such case the trading

price of our common stock could decline and you could lose all or part your investment

The metals industry including silicon-based metals is cyclical and has been subject in the past to swings in market price and demand which could lead to

volatility in our revenues

Our business has historically been subject to fluctuations in the price of our products and market demand for them caused by general and regional economic

cycles raw material and energy price fluctuations competition and other factors Historically our subsidiary Globe Metallurgical Inc has been particularly affected

by recessionary conditions in the end-markets for its products In April 2003 Globe Metallurgical Inc sought protection under Chapter II of the United States

Bankruptcy Code following its
inability to restructure or refinance its indebtedness in

light of the confluence of several negative economic and other factors including

an inliux of low-priced dumped imports which caused it to default on then-outstanding indebtedness recurrence of such economic factors could have material

adverse effect on our business prospects condition financial or otherwise and results of operations

In calendar 2009 the global silicon metal industry suffered from unfavorable market conditions The weakened economic environment of national and

international metals markets that occurred during that time may retum any decline could have material adverse effect on our business prospects condition financial

or otherwise and results of operations In addition our business is directly related to the production levels of our customers whose businesses are dependent on

highly cyclical markets such as the automotive residential and nonresidential construction consumer durables polysilicon and chemical markets In response to

unfavorable market conditions customers may request delays in contract shipment dates or other contract modifications If we grant modifications these could

adversely affect our anticipated revenues and results of operations Also many of our products are intemationally traded products with prices that are significantly

affected by worldwide supply and demand Consequently our financial performance will fluctuate with the general economic cycle which could have material

adverse effect on our business prospects condition financial or otherwise and results of operations

Our business is particularly sensitive to increases in ener costs which could materially increase our cost of production

Electricity is one of our largest production cost components comprising approximately 23% of cost of goods sold The level of power consumption of our

submerged electric arc furnaces is highly dependent on which products are being produced and typically fall in the following ranges silicon-based alloys require

between 3.5 and megawatt hours to produce one MT of product and ii silicon metal requires approximately II megawatt hours to produce one MT of product

Accordingly consistent access to low cost reliable sources of electricity is essential to our business

Electrical power to our U.S and Canada facilities is supplied mostly by AEP Alabama Power Brookfield Power lydro Quebec Tennessee Valley Authority and

Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation through dedicated lines Our Alloy West Virginia facility obtains approximately 45% of its power needs under 15-year fixed-

price contract with nearby dedicated hydroelectric facility This facility is over 70 years old and any breakdown could result in the Alloy facility having to pay much

higher rates for electric power from third parties Our energy supply for our facilities located in Argentina is supplied through the Edemsa hydroelectric facilities

located in Mendoza Argentina Our contract expired in October 2009 we are currently operating under month-to-month arrangement and arc negotiating new

contract Because energy constitutes such high percentage of our production costs we arc particularly vulnerable to cost fluctuations in the energy industry

Accordingly the termination or non-renewal of any of our energy contracts or an increase in the price of energy could materially adversely affect our future earnings

if any and may prevent us from effectively competing in our markets

Losses caused by disruptions in the supply of power would reduce our profitability

Our operations are heavily dependent upon reliable supply of electrical power We may incur losses due to temporary or prolonged interruption of the supply

of electrical power to our facilities which can be caused by unusually high demand blackouts equipment failure natural disasters or other catastrophic events

including failure of the hydroelectric facilities that currently provide power under contract to our West Virginia New York Quebec and Argentina facilities Large

amounts of electricity are used to produce silicon metal and silicon-based alloys and any interruption or reduction in the supply of electrical power would adversely

affect production levels and result in reduced profitability Our insurance coverage does not cover all events and may not be sufficient to cover any or all losses

Certain of our insurance policies will not cover any losses that may be incurred if our suppliers are unable to provide power during periods of unusually high demand

Investments in Argentinas electricity generation and transmission systems have been lower than the increase in demand in recent years If this trend is not

reversed there could be electricity supply shortages as the result of inadequate generation and transmission capacity Given the heavy dependence on electricity of our

manufacturing operations any electricity shortages could adversely affect our financial results

iovcrnment regulations of electricity in Argentina give priority access of hydroelectric power to residential users and subject violators of these restrictions to

significant penalties This preference is particularly acute during Argentinas winter months due to lack of natural gas We have previously successfully petitioned

the govcmmcnt to exempt us from these restrictions given the demands of our business for continuous supply of electric power If we are unsuccessful in our petitions

or in any action we take to ensure stable supply of electricity our production levels maybe adversely affected and our profitability reduced

Any decrease in the availability or increase in the cost of raw materials or transportation could materially increase our costs

Principal components in the production of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys include metallurgical-grade coal charcoal carbon electrodes quartzite wood

chips steel scrap and other metals such as magnesium We buy some raw materials on spot basis We arc dependent on certain suppliers of these products their

labor union relationships mining and lumbering regulations and output and general local economic conditions in order to obtain raw materials in cost efficient and

timely manner An increase in costs of raw materials or transportation or the decrease in their production or deliverability in timely fashion or other disruptions in

production could result in increased costs to us and lower productivity levels We may not be able to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials from alternative

sources on terms as favorable as our current arrangements or at all Any increases in the price or shortfall in the production and delivery of raw materials could

materially adversely affect our business prospects condition financial or otherwise or results of operation

Cost increases in raw material inputs may not be passed on to our customers which could negatively impact our profitability

The availability and prices of raw material inputs may be influenced by supply and demand changes in world politics unstable governments in exporting nations

and inflation The market prices of our products and raw material inputs are subject to change We may not be able to pass significant amount of increased input

costs on to our customers Additionally we may not be able to obtain lower prices from our suppliers should our sale prices decrease



Compliance with and changes in environmental Ians including proposed climate change laws and regulations could adversely affect our performance

The principal environmental risks associated with our operations are emissions into the air and releases into the soil surface water or groundwater Our operations

are subject to extensive foreign federal state provincial and local environmental laws and regulations including those
relating to the discharge of materials into the

environment waste management pollution prevention measures and greenhouse gas emissions If we violate or fail to comply with these laws and regulations we

could be fined or otherwise sanctioned Because environmental laws and regulations arc becoming more stringent and new environmental laws and regulations are

continuously being enacted or proposed such as those relating to greenhouse gas emissions and climate change the level of expenditures required for environmental

niatters could increase in the future Future legislative action and regulatory initiatives could result in changes to operating permits additional remedial actions

material changes in operations increased capital expenditures and operating costs increased costs of the goods we sell and decreased demand for our products that

c3nnot be assessed with certainty at this time

Some of the proposed federal cap-and-trade legislation would require businesses that emit greenhouse gases to buy emission credits from the government other

businesses or through an auction process As result of such program we may be required to purchase emission credits for greenhouse gas emissions resulting from

our operations Although it is not possible at this time to predict the final form of cap-and-trade bill or whether such bill will be passed any new restrictions on

gieerrhouse gas emissions including cap-and-trade program could result in material increased compliance costs additional operating restrictions for our business

arid an increase in the cost of the products we produce which could have material adverse effect on our financial position results of operations and liquidity

We make significant portion of our sales to limited number of customers and the loss of portion of the sales to these customers could have material

adverse effect on our revenues and profits

In the year ended June 30 2012 we made approximately 45% of our consolidated net sales to our top ten customers and approximately 22% to our two top

customers 10% excluding sales made under our joint venture agreements with Dow Coming We expect that we will continue to derive significant portion of our

business from sales to these customers If we were to experience significant reduction in the amount of sales we make to some or all of these customers and could

not replace these sales with sales to other customers it could have material adverse effect on our revenues and profits

Our U.S.-based businesses benefit from U.S antidumping duties and laws that protect U.S companies by taxing imports from foreign companies If these laws

change foreign companies will be able to compete more effectively with us Conversely our foreign operations are adversely affected by these U.S duties and

Ians

Antidumping duties arc currently in place covering silicon metal imports from China and Russia The orders imposing these duties benefit our U.S operations by

constraining supply and increasing U.S market prices and sales of domestic silicon metal Rates of duty can change as result of administrative reviews and new

shipper reviews of antidumping orders These orders can also be revoked as result of periodic sunset reviews which determine whether the orders will continue

to apply to imports from particular countries Although sunset review of the order covering imports from China resulted in that order remaining in place for an

additional five years the current orders may not remain in effect and continue to be enforced from year to year the goods and countries now covered by antidumping

oiders may no longer be covered and duties may not continue to be assessed at the same rates Changes in any of these factors could adversely affect our business and

piofitability Finally at times in filing trade actions we find ourselves acting against the interests of our customers Some of our customers may not continue to do

business with us because of our having filed trade action Antidumping rules may conversely also adversely impact our foreign operations

The Furopean Union like the U.S maintains an antiduinping duty covering silicon metal imports from China The duty was reduced in May 2010

We may be unable to successfully integrate and develop our prior and future acquisitions

We acquired six private companies between November 2006 and June 2011 and entered into business combination in May 2008 and joint venture agreements in

November 2009 and June 2012 We expect to acquire additional companies in the future Integration of our prior and future acquisitions with our existing business is

complex time-consuming and costly process requiring the employment of additional personnel including key management and accounting personnel Additionally

fie integration of these acquisitions with our existing business may require significant financial resources that would otherwise be available for the ongoing

development or expansion of existing operations Unanticipated problems delays costs or liabilities may also be encountered in the development of these

acquisitions Failure to successfully and fully integrate
and develop these businesses and operations may have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition results of operations and cash flows The dilficultres of combining the acquired operations include among other things

operating significantly larger combined organization

coordinating geographically disparate organizations systems and facilities

consolidating corporate technological and administrative functions

integrating internal controls and other corporatc governance matters

the diversion of managements attention from other business concerns

unexpected customer or key employee loss from the acquired businesses

hiring additional inanagcnlcnt and other critical personnel

negotiating with labor unions

significant increase in our indebtedness and

potential
environmental or regulatory liabilities and title problems

In addition we may not realize all of the anticipated benefits from any prior and future acquisitions such as increased earnings cost savings and revenue

cnhanccments for various reasons including difficulties integrating operations and personnel higher and unexpected acquisition and operating costs unknown

abilities inaccurate reserve estimates and fluctuations in markets If these benefits do not meet the expectations of financial or industry analysts the market price of

our shares may decline



We are subject to the risk of union disputes and work stoppages at our facilities which could have malerial adverse effrct on our business

Hourly workers at our Selma Alabama facility arc covered by collective bargaining agreement with the Industrial Division of the Communications Workers of

America under contract running through July 31 2013 burly employees at our Alloy West Virginia Niagara Falls New York and Bridgeport Alabama facilities

are covered by collective bargaining agreements with The United Steel Paper and Forestry Rubber Manufacturing Energy Allied Industrial and Service Workers

International Union under contracts running through April 27 2014 July 29 2014 and March 31 2015 respectively Our union employees in Argentina are working

under contract running through April 30 2013 Our union employees in Canada are working under contract running through April 2013 New labor contracts will

have to be negotiated to replace expiring contracts from time to time If we are unable to satisfactorily renegotiate those labor contracts on terms acceptable to us or

without strike or work stoppage the effects on our business could be materially adverse Any strike or work stoppage could disrupt production schedules and

delivery times adversely affecting sales In addition existing labor contracts may not prevent strike or work stoppage and any such work stoppage could have

material adverse effect on our business

We are dependent on key personneL

Our operations depend to significant degree on the continued employment of our core senior management team In particular we arc dependent on the skills

knowledge and experience of Alan Kestenbaum our Executive Chairman Jeff Bradley our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer Malcolm

Appelbaum our Chief Financial Officer and Stephen Lebowitz our Chief Legal Officer If these employees are unable to continue in their respective roles or if we

are unable to attract and retain other skilled employees our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected We currently have employment

agreements with Alan Kestenbaum Jeff Bradley Malcolm Appelbaum and Stephen Lebowitz each of which contains non-compete provisions Such provisions may

not be enforceable by us Additionally we are substantially dependent upon key personnel in our financial and information technology staff who enable us to meet our

regulatory and contractual financial reporting obligations including reporting requirements under our credit facilities

Metals manufacturing is an inherently dangerous activity

Metals manufacturing generally and smelting in particular is inherently dangerous and subject to fire explosion and sudden major equipment failure This can

and has resulted in accidents resulting in the serious injury or death of production personnel and prolonged production shutdowns We have experienced fatal

accidents and equipment malfunctions in our manufacturing facilities in recent years including fire at our Bridgeport Alabama facility
in November 2011 and may

experience fatal accidents or equipment malfunctions again which could materially affect our business and operations

Our mining operations are subject to risks that are beyond our control which could result in materially increased expenses and decreased production levels

We mine coal and quartzite at underground and surface mining operations Certain factors beyond our control could disrupt our mining operations adversely

affect production and shipments and increase our operating costs such as major incident at the mine site that causes all or part
of the operations of the mine to cease

for some period of time mining processing and plant equipment failures and unexpected maintenance problems changes in reclamation costs and adverse weather

and natural disasters such as heavy rains or snow Ilooding and other natural events affecting operations transportation or customers Federal or state regulatory

agencies have the authority under certain circumstances following significant
health and safety incidents such as fatalities to order mine to be temporarily or

permanently closed If this occurred we may be required to incur capital expenditures to re-open the mine Environmental regulations could impose costs on our

mining operations and future regulations could increase those costs or add new costs or limit our ability to produce and sell coal Our failure to obtain and renew

permits necessary for our mining operations could negatively affect our business

Unexpected equipment failures may lead to production curtailments or shutdowns

Many of our business activities are characterized by substantial investments in complex production facilities and manufacturing equipment Because of the

complex nature of our production facilities any interruption in manufacturing resulting from fire explosion industrial accidents natural disaster equipment failures

or otherwise could cause significant
losses in operational capacity and could materially and adversely affect our business and operations

We depend on proprietary manufacturing processes and software These processes may not yield the cost savings that we anticipate and our proprietary

technology may be challenged

We rely on proprietary technologies and technical capabilities in order to compete effectively and produce high quality silicon metals and silicon-based alloys

Some of these proprietary technologies that we rely on are

computerized technology that monitors and controls production furnaces

production software that monitors the introduction of additives to alloys allowing the precise formulation of the chemical composition of products and

flowcaster equipment which maintains certain characteristics of silicon-based alloys as they are east

We are subject to risk that

we may not have sufficient funds to develop new technology and to implement effectively our technologies as competitors improve their processes

if implemented our technologies may not work as planned and

our proprietary technologies may be challenged and we may not be able to protect our rights to these technologies

Patent or other intellectual property infringement claims may be asserted against us by competitor or others Our intellectual property may not be enforceable

and it may not prevent others from developing and marketing competitive products or methods An infringement action against us may require the diversion ol

substantial funds from our operations and may require management to expend efforts that might otherwise be devoted to operations successful challenge to the

validity of any of our proprietary intellectual property may subject us to significant award of damages or we maybe enjoined from using our proprietary intellectual

property which could have material adverse effect on our operations

We also
rely on trade secrets know-how and continuing technological advancement to maintain our competitive position We may not be able to effectively

protect our rights to unpatented trade secrets and know-how
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We are subject to environmental health and safety regulations including laws that impose substantial costs and the risk of material liabilities

We are subjcct to extensive foreign federal national state provincial and local environmental health and safity laws and regulations governing among other

things the generation discharge emission storage handling transportation use treatment and disposal of hazardous substances land use reclamation and

rrmcdiation and the health and safety of our employees We are also required to obtain permits from governmental authorities for certain operations We may not

have been and may not be at all times in complete compliance with such laws regulations and permits If we violate or fail to comply with these laws regulations or

permits we could be subject to penalties fines restrictions on operations or other sanctions Under these laws regulations and permits we could also be held liable

kr any and all consequences arising out of human exposure to hazardous substances or environmental damage we may cause or that relates to our operations or

properties

Under certain environmental laws we could be required to remediate or be held responsible for all of the costs relating to any contamination at our or our

predecessors past or present facilities and at third party waste disposal sites We could also be held liable under these environmental laws for sending or arranging for

hazardous substances to be sent to third party disposal or treatment facilities if such facilities are found to be contaminated Under these laws we could be held liable

den if we did not know of or were not responsible for such contamination or even if we never owned or operated the contaminated disposal or treatment facility

There are variety of laws and regulations in place or being considered at the intemational federal regional state and local levels of government that restrict or

ate reasonably likely to restrict the emission of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases. These legislative and regulatory developments may cause us to incur

material costs if we are required to reduce or offset greenhouse gas emissions and may result in material increase in our energy costs due to additional regulation of

rower generators

Fnvironmental laws are complex change frequently and are likely to become more stringent in the future Therefore our costs of complying with current and

fjtuie environmental laws and our liabilities arising from past or future releases of or exposure to hazardous substances may adversely affect our business results of

cpeiations and financial condition

We operate in highly competitive industry

The silicon-based alloy and silicon metal markets are capital intensive and competitive Our primary competitors are Elkem AS owned by China National

Itlucstar Group Co Ltd Grupo Ferroatlantica S.L and various producers in China Our competitors may have greater financial resources as well as other
strategic

advantages to maintain improve and possibly expand their facilities and as result they may be better positioned to adapt to changes in the industry or the global

economy The advantages that our competitors have over us could have material adverse effect on our business In addition new entrants may increase competition

our industry which could materially adversely afict our business An increase in the use of substitutes for certain of our products also could have material

adverse effect on our financial condition and operatiorts

We have historically operated at near the ma.xinum capacity of our operating facilities Because the cost of increasing capacity may be prohibitively expensive

we may have difficulty increasing our production and profits

Our facilities are able to manufacture collectively approximately 120000 MT of silicon metal excluding Dow Cornings portion of the capacity of our Alloy

\Vest Virginia plant and our Becancour Quebec plant and 120000 MT of silicon-based alloys on an annual basis Our ability to increase production and revenues

swill depend on expanding existing facilities or opening new ones Increasing capacity is difficult because

adding new production capacity to an existing silicon plant to produce approximately 30000 MT of metallurgical grade silicon would cost approximately

$120000000 and take at least 12 to 18 months to complete once permits are obtained which could take more than year

greenfield developnient project would take at least three to five years to complete and would require significant capital expenditure and environmental

compliance costs and

obtaining sufficient and dependable power at competitive rates near areas with the required natural resources is diflicult to accomplish

We may not have sufficient funds to expand existing facilities or open new ones and may be required to incur significant
debt to do so which could have

iriaterial adverse effect on our business

We are subject to restrictive covenants under credit facilities These covenants could significantly affect the way in which we conduct our business Our failure

to comply with these covenants could lead to an acceleration of our debt

We entered into credit facilities that contain covenants that among other things restrict our ability to sell assets incur repay or refinance indebtedness create

liens make investments engage in mergers or acquisitions pay dividends including to us repurchase stock or make capital expenditures These credit facilities also

iequire compliance with specified financial covenants including minimum interest coverage and maximum leverage ratios We cannot borrow under their credit

facilities if the additional borrowings would cause them to breach the financial covenants Further significant portion of our assets are pledged to secure

indebtedness

Our ability to comply with applicable covenants may be affected by events beyond our control The breach of any of the covenants contained in the credit facility

unless waived would be default under the facility This would permit the lenders to terminate their commitments to extend credit under and accelerate the maturity

of the facility
The acceleration of debt could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and liquidity If we were unable to repay our debt to the

lenders and holders or otherwise obtain waiver from the lenders and holders the lenders and holders could proceed against the collateral securing the credit facility

ad exercise all other rights available to them We may not have sullicient funds to make these accelerated payments and may not be able to obtain any such waiver

on acceptable terms or at all

We have limitations on our ability to pay dividends.

Our revolving multi-currency credit facility limits dividends to shareholders in an amount not to exceed in any fiscal year 50% of net income during the

immediately preceding fiscal year

Our insurance costs may increase and we may experience additional exclusions and limitations on coverage in the future

We have maintained various forms of insurance including insurance covering claims related to our properties and risks associated with our operations Our

existing property and liability insurance coverage contain exclusions and limitations on coverage From time-to-time in connection with renewals of insurance we

have experienced additional exclusions and limitations on coverage larger
self-insured retentions and deductibles and significantly higher premiums As result in

he future our insurance coverage may not cover claims to the extent that it has in the past and the costs that we incur to procure insurance may increase significantly

either of which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations
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So/si may never operate profitably or generate substantial revenues

Solsil is currently focused on research and development projects and is not producing material for commercial sale Although we expect to expand its operations

through the construction of new facilities its financial prospects are uncertain Solsils anticipated growth including the construction of new facilities will require

commitment of significant financial resources that we may determine are not available given the expansion of other existing operations and continuing research and

development efforts In addition Solsils anticipated growth will require commitment of personnel including key positions in management that may not be

available to us when needed Unanticipated problems construction delays cost overruns raw material shortages environmental and/or govemmental regulation

limited power availability or unexpected liabilities may also be encountered Furthermore Solsils expected future profitability is dependent on its ability to produce

UMG at significantly larger scales than it currently can produce today and with commercially viable costs Some of the other challenges we may encounter include

technical challenges including further improving Solsils proprietary metallurgical process

increasing the size and scale of our operations on cost-effective basis

capitalizing on market demands and potentially rapid market supply and demand fluctuations

continued acceptance by the market of our current and future products including the use of UMG in the photovoltaie solar market

rapidly growing competitive environment with more new players entering the photovoltaic solar market

alternative competing technologies and

responding to rapid technological changes

Failure to successfully address these and other challenges may hinder or prevent our ability to achieve our objectives in timely manner and may result in the

impairment of assets currently used in Solsils production processes

We have operations and assets in the U.S Argentina Canada China and Poland and may have operations and assets in other countries in the future Our

international operations and assets may be subject to various economic social and governmental risks

Our intemational operations and sales will expose us to risks that could negatively impact our future sales or profitability Our operations may not develop in the

same way or at the same rate as might be expected in country with an economy similar to the United States The additional risks that we may be exposed to in these

cases include but are not limited to

tariffs and trade barriers

currency fluctuations which could decrease our revenues or increase our costs in U.S dollars

regulations related to customs and import/export matters

tax issues such as tax law changes and variations in tax laws

limited access to qualified staff

inadequate infrastructure

cultural and language diffirences

inadequate banking systems

different and/or more stringent environmental laws and regulations

restrictions on the repatriation of profits or payment of dividends

crime strikes riots civil disturbances terrorist attacks or wars

nationalization or expropriation of property

law enforcement authorities and courts that are weak or inexperienced in commercial matters and

deterioration of political relations among countries

Our competitive strength as low-cost silicon metal producer is partly tied to the value of the U.S dollar compared to other currencies The U.S dollar has

fluctuated
significantly

in value in comparison to major currencies in recent years Should the value of the U.S dollar rise in comparison to other currencies we may
lose this competitive strength

Exchange controls and restrictions on transfers abroad and
capital

inflow restrictions have limited and can be expected to continue to limit the
availability

ol

intemational credit In 2001 and 2002 Argentina imposed exchange controls and transfer restrictions substantially limiting the
ability

of companies to retain foreign

currency or make payments abroad These restrictions have been eased although certain new controls were implemented in 2012 Argentina may re-impose more

significant exchange control or transfer restrictions in the future among other things in response to capital flight or significant depreciation of the Argentine peso
In addition the govemment adopted various rules and regulations in June 2005 that established new controls on capital inflows requiring among other things that

30% of all
capital

inflows subject to certain exceptions be deposited for one year in non-assignable noninterest bearing account in Argentina Additional controls

could have negative effect on the economy and our Argentine business if imposed in an economic environment where access to local capital is substantially

constrained Moreover in such event restrictions on the transfers of funds abroad may impede our ability to receive dividend payments from our Argentine

subsidiaries
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Our stock price may he volatile and purchasers of our common stock could incur substantial losses

Our stock price may be volatile The stock market in general has experienced extreme volatility
that has otlen been unrelated to the operating performance of

particular companies As result of this volatility you may not be able to sell your common stock at or above the price at which you purchase the shares The market

price for our common stock may be influenced by many factors including

the success of competitive products or technologies

regulatory developments in the United States and foreign countries

developments or disputes concerning patents or other proprietary rights

the recruitment or departure of key personnel

quarterly or annual variations in our financial results or those of companies that are perceived to be similar to us

market conditions in the industries in which we compete and issuance of new or changed securities analysts reports or recommendations

the failure of securities analysts to cover our common stock or changes in financial estimates by analysts

the inability to meet the financial estimates of analysts who billow our common stock

investor perception of our company and of the industry in which we compete and

general economic political
and market conditions

The concentration of our capital stock ownership among our largest stockholders and their affiliates may limit your ability to influence corporate matters

To the best of our knowledge our four largest stockholders including our Executive Chairman together beneficially own approximately 37% of our outstanding

ummon stock Consequently these stockholders have significant influence over all matters that require approval by our stockholders including the election of

directors and approval of significant corporate transactions This concentration of ownership may limit your ability to influence corporate matters and as result

.ictions may be taken that you may not view as bencfieial

The issuance of dividends may or may not occur in the foreseeable future

In August 2012 our Board of Directors approved an annual dividend of $0.25 per common share payable quarterly in September 2012 December 2012 March

0l3 and June 2013 The decision to pay dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and depends on our financial condition results of operations capital

equirements financial covenants and other factors that our Board of Directors deems relevant In the future we intend to continue to consider declaring dividends on

in annual basis subject to reviewing our eamings and then current circumstances but there is no guaranty that we will continue to issue dividends

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and by-laws could discourage potential acq uisition proposals and could deter or prevent change in controL

Some provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws as well as Delaware statutes may have the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change in

ontrol These provisions including those providing for the possible issuance of shares of our preferred stock and the right of our Board of Directors to amend the

ylaws may make it more difficult for other persons without the approval of the Board of Directors to make tender offer or otherwise acquire substantial number

if shares of our common stock or to launch other takeover attempts that stockholder might consider to be in his or her best interest These provisions could limit the

irice that some investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock

Our acquisition of exploration mining licenses in Nigeria involves number of risks and uncertainties and may not be profitable

During the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 we made advances totaling approximately $17000000 to acquire exploration mining licenses in Nigeria to mine for

manganese ore raw material used in the production of certain silicon and manganese based alloys We intend to conduct geological and geophysical studies to

iscertain the quality and quantity of manganese reserves on these sites Until such evaluations are completed the
potential reserves associated with the mining

licenses as well as the
capital

and operating costs associated with the related cxtraetive activities are subject to considerable uncertainty

We have no history of mining operations in Nigeria Our future operations in Nigeria may be afbcted by changing economic regulatory and political

.nvironments which niay impact our financial returns from projects in that country The advancement of this prolect will require the operation of mines and the

Jevelopment of related infrastructure In addition if the price of manganese ore declines if production costs increase or recovery rates arc lower than expected or if

mpplicable laws and regulations arc adversely changed we may never successfully establish mining operations or any operations established may not achieve

profitability

tern Unresolved Staff Comment.s

None
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Item Properties

We believe our facilities are suitable and adequate for our business and current production requirements The following tables describe our primary office space

manufacturing facilities and mining properties

Square Number of Business

Location of Facility Purpose Footage Furnaces Own/Lease Segment Served

New York New York Office 3958 Lease Corporate

Beverly Ohio Manufacturing and other 273377 Own GMI

Selma Alabama Manufacturing and other 126207 Own CMI

Alloy West Virginia Manufacturing and other 1063032 Own IMI

Niagara Falls New York Manufacturing and other 227732 Own GM
Bridgeport Alabama Manufacturing and other 155100 Own GM
Nevisdale Kentucky Manufacturing andother 723096 Lease CMI

Bccancour Canada Manufacturing and other 2619000 Own GMI

Mendozn Argentina Manufactwing and other 138500 Own Globe Metales

San Luis Argentina Manufacturing and other 59200 On Globe Metales

Police Poland Manufacturing and other 435l Own Other

ShiLuishan China Manufacturing and other 227192 Other

Fxcludes Solsils seven smaller furnaces used to produce UMG for solar cell applications

We own the long-term land use rights for the land on which this facility is located We own the building and equipment forming part
of this

facility

Business

Location of Mines Product Own/Lease Segment Served

Alabama Quartaite Lease CMI
Kentucky Coal Lease GMI

Item Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business we are subject to periodic lawsuits investigations claims and proceedings including but not limited to contractual

disputes employment environmental health and safety matters as well as claims associated with our historical acquisitions and divestitures Although we cannot

predict with certainty the ultimate resolution of lawsuits investigations claims and proceedings asserted against us we do not believe any currently pending legal

proceeding to which we are party will have material adverse effect on our business prospects financial condition cash flows results of operations or liquidity

Item Mine Safety Disclosure

This information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503a of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulations S-K 17 CFR 229.104 is included in exhibit 95 to this report
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PART II

tern Market frr Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

Shares of our common stock arc traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol GSM

Price Range of Common Stock

Our shares began trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on July 30 2009 The price range per share of common stock presented below represents the

highest and lowest sales prices for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market during each quarter of the last two fiscal years

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter

Fisa1 year 2012 price range per ixannin share 11 41 15 15 1225 1666 1244 1840 1366- 2567

Fiscal year 2011 price range per common share 20.25 24.38 16.85 23.64 14.20 17.92 9.80 14.18

Holders

As of August 21 2012 there were approximately 22 holders of record of our common stock The number of record holders does not include holders of shares in

treet names or persons partnerships associations corporations or other entities identified in security position listings maintained by depositories

Dividends and Dividend Policy

In August 2012 our Board of Directors approved an annual dividend of $0.25 per common share payable quarterly in September 2012 December 2012 March

2013 and June 2013 The decision to pay dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and depends on our financial condition results of operations capital

rquiremcnts financial covenants and other factors that our Board of Directors deems relevant In the future we intend to continue to consider declaring dividends on

an annual basis subject to reviewing our eamings and then current circumstances

Sales of Unregistered Securities

The fillowing is summary of our transactions during the last three fiscal years involving sales of our securities that were not registered under the Securities Act

ci 1933 as amended

Between September 2009 and October 2009 we issued 1574529 shares of common stock in connection with the exercise of UPOs and 201404 shares in

connection with the exercise of outstanding warrants These exercises resulted in proceeds of $1497000 The sales and issuances of shares to US persons pursuant to

tie exercise of UPOs and pursuant to the exercise of warrants were deemed to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act by virtue of Section 42 of the

Securities Act as transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering The sales and Issuances of shares to non-US persons pursuant to the exercise of warrants

were deemed to be exempt from registration
under the Securities Act pursuant to Regulation governing offers and sales made outside the United States

Use of Proceeds

In August 2009 we closed on an initial public ofThring of 16100000 shares of our common stock at $7.00 per share Of the shares offered 5600000 shares were

Tered by us and 10500000 shares were offered by selling stockholders which included 2100000 shares sold by the
selling

stockholders pursuant to the exercise of

te underwriters over-allotment option Total proceeds of the offering were $l12.700000 of which the selling stockholders received $68355000 net of

iiderwriting discounts and commissions totaling $5 45000 and we received $36456000 net of underwriting discounts and commissions
totaling $2744000 In

addition we also recognized offering costs of $1688000 Net proceeds were utilized for the acquisition of ore Metals the remaining proceeds were added to

working capital

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchaser

We did not repurchase any of our outstanding equity securities during the most recent quarter covered by this report

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Plan Category Number of securities to be issued Weighted-average exercise price Number of securities remaining available

upon exercise of outstanding of outstanding options for future issuance under equity

options compensation plans excluding securities

reflected in column

quity compensation plans approved by security holdcrs 365 397 $8 10 497 633

Iquily compensation plans not approved by security

olders

Total 4365397 $8.10 497633
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following tables summarize certain selected consolidated financial data which should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and

the notes thereto and with Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K The selected consolidated financial data presented below for the fiscal years ended June 30 2012 2011 2010 2009 and 2008 are derived from our

audited consolidated financial statements

Year Ended June 30

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands except per share data

603799 515276 458829 311352 346237

Statement of operations data

Net sales 705.544 641863 472.658 426291 452.639

ost of goods sold 5S2.87 488.0 IS 90093 10.036 351.918

Selling general and administrative expenses 61.623 54739 47875 322 42857

Research and des elopment 27 2t it 194 90

Husiness interruption insurance recovery 450
RestrucIurin charges

Gain loss on sale of buines.c 54 4.240 197
ioodss ill and intangible asset impairment

69.704

Operating income loss 91425 94770 54286 76 56.963

Interest and other expense income 4.789 2.0561 52 890 S.285

Income loss before income taxes 86636 92714 54.807 75 51.678

Pros isbn for henelii hum income taxes 28.760 35.988 20.53 .609 5936

Net income loss 57876 56726 34.268 84 35742

Income losses attributable to noncontrolling interest net of tax l.306 3.018 167 3.403 721

Net income loss attributable to Globe Specialty Metals Inc 54570 52808 34101 fl 163

Farnis loss per common share basic
tt.71 0.70 0.46 0.65

Earnings loss per common share diluted 0.71 0.69 0.46 0.65

ash dix idends declared per common share i.0 IS

June 30 June 30 June 30 .June 30 June 30

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Ilalance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents 1780 10 166.208 157.029 61876 73.994

otal assets 916747 678269 607.14S 473.280 548.174

Total debt including cut7ent portion 140703 48083 41.079 59611 89.205

Total stockholders equity
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tern Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the to/lowing discussion and anolysis together with Selected Financial Data and our consolidated financial statements and the notes to those

tatements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K This discussion contains forward-looking statements based on our current expectations

assumptions estimates and projections about us and our industry These forward-looking statements involve assumptions risks and uncertainties Our actual results

ould difjr materially from those indicated in these forward-looking statements as result 0/certain factors as more fully
described in the Risk bactocc section

and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K We undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason even if new

iiformation becomes available or other events occur in the future

Introduction

Globe Specialty Metals Inc together with its subsidiaries collectively GSM we or our is one of the leading manufacturers of silicon metal and silicon-based

alloys As of June 30 2012 we owned and operated seven principal manufacturing facilities in two primary operating segments GMI our North

\merican operations and Globe Metales our Argentine operations

ltusiness Segments

We operate in six reportable segments

GMI manufacturer of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys located in North America with plants in Beverly Ohio Alloy West Virginia Niagara Falls

New York Selma Alabama Bridgeport Alabama and BØeancour Quebec and provider of specialty metallurgical coal for the silicon metal and silicon-based

alloys industries located in Corbin Kentucky

Globe Metals distributor of silicon metal nianufactured in Brazil This segment includes the historical Brazilian manufacturing operations comprised of

manufacturing plant in Breu Branco and mining operations and forest reserves which were all sold on November 200c Subsequent to this divestiture Globe

Metais net sales relate only to the fulfillment of certain retained customer contracts which were completed as of December 31 2010

Globe Metales manufacturer of silicon-based alloys located in Argentina with silicon-based alloys plant in Mendoza and cored-wire fabrication facility

in San Luis

Solsil developer and manufacturer of upgraded metallurgical grade silicon metal located in the United States with operations in Beverly Ohio

Corporate corporate office including general expenses investments and related investment income and

Other includes an electrode production operation in China Yonvey and cored-wire production facility located in Poland These operations do not lit into

the above reportable segments and are immaterial for purposes of separate disclosure

Overview and Recent Developments

Customer demand remains strong for silicon metal and silicon-based alloys as our major end markets which include chemicals aluminum automotive steel and

solar are showing improvement Spot pricing for silicon metal and silicon-based alloys remains good but declined modestly in the fiscal fourth quarter as European

Jeniand remains sluggish and competitors lowered prices The modest decline in silicon metal spot pricing served to reduce our average selling price due to the fact

that approximately 30% of our annual contracts are priced based on indices and adjust quarterly The modest decline in silicon-based alloy pricing also affected our

realized pricing as these products are priced on quarterly basis We continue to operate at full capacity and our end markets have excellent prospects for continued

improvement In our chemicals end market which represents producers of silicones the single largest application for silicon metal the large manufacturers are

performing well Polysilicon production and solar cell demand is also continuing to grow with new domestic production capacity coming on line specifically two

new plants being built in Tennessee despite decreased pricing and reduction in subsidies Steel capacity utilization and auto production two significant
end markets

ire both expected to grow and auto-related aluminum production which uses the most silicon metal is also expected to Increase We are presently running all of the

ftmrnaees at our six primary plants at full capacity subject to normal maintenance outages

We closed on the acquisition of the silicon metal assets of Becancour Silicon Metal Inc on June 13 2012 including its 51% interest in Quebec Silicon Limited

Partnership 47000 metric ton silicon metal plant as well as certain other working capital assets Globe operates the silicon metal plant consolidates the results and

purchases approximately 51% of the finished goods output at price approximately equal to the fully loaded cost of production and sells the material to third party

customers Dow Corning Corporation Dow Corning has the right to purchase the other 49% of the plants output at price approximately equal to the fully loaded

cost of production This arrangement is similar to the Companys existing joint venture with Dow Coming at its Alloy West Virginia plant Globe believes that it can

achieve meaningful cost reductions and operating efficiencies at the plant primarily involving raw materials and should benefit Globe and Dow Coming We have

already made certain improvements and cost reductions at the plant by providing Alden coal reducing employee headeount and enhancing operating procedures

Earlier in May we closed on new $300000000 syndicated credit facility The facility refinanced existing debt and closing costs of $96550000 and along with

the Companys cash balances it can be used to finance acquisitions growth initiatives stock buy-backs working capital and for general corporate purposes The

Lmcility is revolving loan and does not require bormowing base It has five-year term and at the current leverage ratio carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus

.75% The loan has certain financial covenants negative covenants and restrictions

During our fiscal fourth quarter we shipped approximately 10% more material than in the immediately preceding quarter Approximately half of this increase was

related to the acquisition of Quebec Silicon in mid-June and half to the timing of existing customer shipments Net sales for the fourth quarter increased $18261000

or 11% from the preceding quarter as result of the 10% increase in tons shipped partially
offset by 2% decrease in average selling prices The average selling price

decreased in the quarter due to modest decline in silicon metal and silicon-based alloy spot pricing Other sales also increased in the quarter by $7273000 primarily

lue to the sale at cost of certain raw materials that were no longer required in production

During the fourth quarter we incurred $3765000 of transaction-related and due diligence expenses including $1300000 for the write-off of the Iceland prepaid

expenses We had intended to build silicon metal plant in Iceland but have instead written off the costs due to the current economic conditions in Europe and the

lack of available financing We also wrote-off $1600000 of deferred financing expenses related to the refinancing of our prior debt by our new holding company

S300000000 revolving credit facility During the fourth quarter we lowered our per ton production costs by approximately 3% for saving of approximately

S4500000 which effectively offset the modestly lower average selling prices in the quarter

Income before provision for income taxes totaled $15158000 in the fourth quarter which included the $3765000 of transaction expenses and $1600000 of

defrred financing costs write-off This compares to income before provision for income taxes in the third quarter of $18238000 which included $1047000 of

transaction expenses
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Outlook

We continue to see improving demand for our products as our end markets expand and we continue to operate at full capacity subject to scheduled maintenance

outages and unplanned downtime As demand in Europe remains sluggish prices for our products have declined modestly 1-lowcver in the fourth quarter we were

able to successfully lower production costs which more than offset the effect of the lower pricing We expect our average selling price of silicon metal and silicon-

based alloys to remain relatively flat for the remainder of calendar 2012 Our silicon metal average selling price is based on our annual fixed price contracts our

annual index-based contracts which adjust each quarter based on spot pricing and our spot sales Silicon-based alloy pricing resets each quarter and pricing is

function of overall supply and demand Demand is largely derived from steel capacity utilization and auto production

We expect an increase in tons sold in the first quarter of fiscal 2013 as result of the first full quarter of Quebec Silicon results This should result in an increase

in sales with modest increase in gross margin However this increase in gross margin could be more than offset by an expected 530000000 shortfall caused by

storm related power outages In mid-June our Bridgeport Alabama plant suffered an unplanned power outage related to storms and in early July our Alloy West

Virginia plant suffered two unplanned power outages related to storms Although the storms were very severe the plants did not suffer
significant

direct

damage However the plants ceased operations for several days and then took few weeks to resume full production This caused shortfall in expected production

as well as higher costs

Our Alden coal business continues to meet expectations as it supplies the majority of the coal needs for our plants and is expanding sales to third parties We

expect Aldens volumes to continue to grow and its cost per ton of production to decline

We continue to pursue the business interruption insurance claim for the Bridgeport fire We expect the final claim to be paid by the second quarter of fiscal 2013

We are optimistic about our results for fiscal 2013 as we see shipments increasing selling prices remaining stable and possibly increasing based on improving

demand and cost of production declining

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP The

preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and

expenses as well as the disclosure olcontingent assets and liabilities We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and other factors that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results may differ from the estimates used under different assumptions or conditions

Business Combinations

We have completed number of significant business acquisitions Our business strategy contemplates that we may pursue additional acquisitions in the future

When we acquire business the purchase price is allocated based on the fair value of tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities

assumed Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants Goodwill as

of the acquisition date is measured as the residual of the excess of the consideration transferred plus the fair value of any noneontrolling interest in the acquirce at the

acquisition date over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired We generally engage independent third-party appraisal firms to assist in determining the fair

value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed Such valuation requires management to make significant estimates especially with respect to intangible assets

These estimates are based on historical experience and information obtained from the management of the acquired companies These estimates are inherently

uncertain and may impact reported depreciation and amortization in future periods as well as any related impairment of goodwill or other long lived assets

Goodwill

At June 30 2012 we had goodwill totaling $56740000 We annually review in the third quarter of our fiscal year goodwill for impairment review is also

performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable Impairment is the condition that exists

when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of goodwill

recognized in business combination The excess of the fair value of reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of

goodwill An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill of the reporting unit Fair value

is measured based on discounted cash flow method using discount rate determined by us to be commensurate with the risk inherent in our current business model

or valuation technique based on multiples of earnings consistent with the objective of measuring fair value The estimates of cash flows future earnings and

discount rate arc subject to change due to the economic environment and business trends including such factors as raw material and product pricing interest rates

expected market returns and
volatility

of markets served as well as our future manufacturing capabilities government regulation and technological change We

believe that the estimates of future cash flows future earnings and fair value arc reasonable however changes in estimates circumstances or conditions could have

significant impact on our fair valuation determination which could then result in material impairment charge in our results of operations

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012 we performed the annual impairment testing As of that date all reporting units had fair values that exceeded carrying

values and no impairment charge was required In our year-end assessment our forecasts for the Yonvey business unit included reduction in production levels

testing
of new raw materials and cost rationalization initiatives for the next fiscal year Our Yonvey business unit had calculated fair value that exceeded its carrying

value by less than an amount we deem substantial We are closely monitoring the operating plans of our Yonvey unit If we do not meet our operating plans we could

incur goodwill impairment charge of up to the carrying amount of $7700000

Long-Lived Assets

Al June 30 2012 we had property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation depletion and amortization totaling $432761000 including

$18935000 associated with our Solsil business unit Solsil is currently focused on research and development projects and is not producing material for commercial

sale We review the recoverability of our long-lived assets when events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying value of the asset or asset

group may not be recoverable The assessment of possible impairment is based on our ability to recover the carrying value of the asset or asset group from the

expected future undiscounted pretax cash flows of the related operations

We assess the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash

Ilows of other assets and liabilities If these undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of such asset or asset group an impairment loss is measured

based on the difference between estimated fair value and carrying value Assets to be disposed arc written down to the lower of carrying amount or fair value less

costs to sell and depreciation ceases Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models quoted market values

and third-party independent appraisals as considered necessary We believe that the estimates of future cash flows future earnings and fair value arc reasonable

however changes in estimates circumstances or conditions including the results of Solsils research and development activities could have significant impact on

our fair valuation determination which could then result in material impairment charge in our results of operations
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Inventories

At June 30 2012 we had inventories totaling $119441000 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market value which does not exceed net realizable

value Cost of inventories is determined either by the first-in first-out method or by the average cost method When circumstances indicate potential valuation issue

tests are perldrmcd to assess net realizable value and as necessary an inventory write-down is recorded for obsolete slow moving or defective inventory We

estimate market and net realizable value based on current and future selling prices for our inventories as well as the expected utilization of
parts

and supplies in our

manufacturing process We believe that these estimates arc reasonable however changes in estimates or future price decreases caused by changing economic

conditions including customer demand could result iii future inventory adjustments resulting in decreased operating profits and lower asset levels

Share-Based Compensation

During the year ended June 30 2012 we recorded share-based compensation expense of $2482000 Share-based payments to the extent they arc compensatory
ire recognized in our consolidated statement of income based on their fair values We have applied the provisions of the SECs Staff Accounting Bulletin No 107

SAL 107 in our accounting for share-based compensation We are required to estimate the stock awards that we ultimately expect to vest and to reduce share-based

compensation expense for the effi.cts of estimated fori of awards over the expense recognition period Given our share-based compensation was granted under

new plan and that there is limited historical data we have estimated forfeiture rate of zero Actual forfeitures in the future may differ from this estimate which

would favorably impact our luture results from operations

We estimate the fair value of employee stock options using Black-Seholes valuation model Our common stock is currently traded on the NASDAQ Global

clcct Market effective July 29 2009 Accordingly for stock awards granted subsequent to July 29 2009 we value our common stock based upon the closing price

our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on the date immediately preceding the date of grant Prior to July 29 2009 our common stock was

traded on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange and we valued our common stock based upon the closing price of our common stock on the AIM market on

the date immediately preceding the late of grant The fair value of an award is affected by our closing stock price as well as other assumptions including the

estimated volatility over the term of the awards and the estimated period of time that we expect employees to hold their stock options which is calculated using the

vmmplilied method allowed by SAB 107 As there is limited trading data related to our common stock the expected volatility over the expected vesting term of our

tjiare-based compensation is based upon the historical volatilities of similar companies The risk-free interest rate assumption we use is based upon United States

interest rates appropriate for the expected life of the award Our expected dividend rate for grants prior to June 30 2010 was zero as we did not pay cash

dividends on our common stock and did not anticipate doing so Actual results could differ from these estimates which would impact our results from operations

Income Taxes

We recorded provision for income taxes of $28760000 during the year ended June 30 2012 As part of the process of preparing consolidated financial

sLatements we arc required to estimate income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we conduct business This process involves estimating actual current tax

expense and temporary differences between tax and financial reporting Temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which are included in the

consolidated balance sheet We must assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be realized valuation allowance is recognized to reduce deferred tax assets if

md to the extent that it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The determination of the need for valuation

allowance is based on an on-going evaluation of current information including among other things estimates of future earnings in different tax jurisdictions and the

expected timing of deferred income tax asset and liability reversals We believe that the determination to record valuation allowance to reduce deferred income tax

assets is critical accounting estimate because it is based in part on an estimate of future taxable income in the various tax jurisdictions in which we do business

which is susceptible to change and may or may not occur as well as the estimated timing of the reversal of temporary differences which give rise to our deferred

income tax assets and because the inipact of adjusting valuation allowance may be material In the event that actual results differ from estimates in future periods

and depending on the tax strategies that we may be able to implement changes to the valuation allowance could impact our financial position and results of

operations

As part of our accounting for business combinations some of the purchase price is allocated to goodwill and intangible assets Amortization expense associated

with acquired intangible assets is generally not tax deductible however deferred taxes have been recorded for non-deductible amortization expense as part
of the

purchase price allocation process We have taken into account the allocation of these identified intangibles among different taxing jurisdictions in establishing the

iclatcd deferred tax liabilities Income tax contingencies existing as of the acquisition dates of the acquired companies are evaluated quarterly and any adjustments arc

iccorded as adjustments to income tax expense Prior our adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 805-10 Business Combinations on July 2009

much adjustments were recorded to reduce to zero any goodwill related to the acquisition reduce to zero other noncurrent intangible assets related to the

acquisition and reduce income tax expense

We recognize an uncertain tax position only if it more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority

that has full knowledge of all relevant information based on the technical merits of the position The income tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit

that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement with taxing authority The determination of an uncertain tax position and the likelihood of it being

calmzed requires critical judgment and estimates We carefully assess each of the uncertain tax positions in order to determine the tax benefit that can be recognized in

lie consolidated financial statements We record and/or disclose such potential tax liabilities as appropriate and reasonably estimate our income tax liabilities and

mecoverable tax assets If new information becomes available adjustments will be charged against income at that time We do not
anticipate

that such adjustments

would have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or liquidity however it is possible that the final outcomes could have material impact on

our reported results of operations

Results of Operations

Our results of operations are affected by our recent acquisitions of Alden Resources on July 28 2011 and Quebec Silicon on June 13 2012 Accordingly our

mcsults for the year ended June 30 2012 include approximately eleven months of results from Alden Resources and seventeen days of results from Quebec Silicon

dditionally we sold the manufacturing operations of Globe Metais in November 2010 but continued to sell portion of the silicon metal produced by Globe Metais

Ililfill commitments to customers of Globe Metais that we retained until December 31 2010
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GSM Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012 vs 2011

Consolidated Operations

Total net sales

in 000s MT S/MT in 000s

360726 119634 3015 343599

2699 19 113468 2379 236607

630645 233102 2705 584206

74899 57657

705544 641863

Year Ended June 30 2011

Net Sales

MT
122607

110868

233475

Net sales increased $63681000 or 1000 from the prior year to $705544000 primarily as result of an increase in average selling prices The increase in

average selling prices resulted in an increase in net sales of $49316000 with 6% and 12 increase in selling prices of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys

respectively The increase in silicon metal pricing was primarily driven by higher pricing of calendar 2012 contracts as compared to calendar 2010 contracts as well

as improved spot pricing in fiscal year 2012 The increase in silicon-based alloys pricing was primarily due to an increase in magnesium ferrosilicon pricing resulting

from strong demand from the automotive industry and pass through of higher rare earth costs Ferrosilicon pricing improved as demand improved from the steel

industry and the sale of higher purity and specialty grades of ferrosilicon

Metric tons sold remained flat year-over-year There was decrease in silicon metal tons sold offset by increase in silicon-based alloys tons sold The

decline in silicon metal tons was primarily due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on November 2009 Subsequent to this

divestiture remaining Globe Metais sales related only to the fulfillment of certain retained customer contracts completed at the end of the second quarter of fiscal year

2011 and no further sales will be made under this arrangement The silicon volume decrease was partially
offset by the acquisition of Quebec Silicon on June 13

2012 which contributed 2010 tons during fiscal year 2012 Silicon-based alloys tons sold increased primarily due to demand from the automotive and steel industries

Other revenue increased by $17242000 primarily due to third party coal sales from the acquisition of Alden and the sale of manganese ore which was purchased

as raw material and ultimately not used in production

1St of Goods Sold

The $64855000 or 13 increase in cost of goods sold was result of 13 increase in our cost per ton sold and the increase in by-product and other sales The

increase in cost per ton sold reflects the impact of the planned maintenance performed on six of our fourteen domestic fumaces the costs associated with the fire at

our Bridgeport Alabama ferrosilicon facility and the impact of higher raw material and production costs year over year

Gross margin represented approximately 22c of net sales in fiscal year 2012 and decreased from 24 of net sales in fiscal year 2011 The decrease was mainly

attributable to higher production costs related to the planned maintenance outages the fire at our Bridgeport Alabama facility and the recognition of $9400000 in

previously deferred revenue in the prior year period This was offset by an increase in average selling prices year over year

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

The increase in selling general and administratise expenses of $6884000 or 13 was primarily due to an increase in bonus expense of $2691000 due to higher

profitability year over year higher due diligence and transaction related expenses of $2308000 and the impact of acquisitions which increased expense by

$2152000 and $254000 for Alden and Quebec Silicon respectively These increases were offset by $828000 decrease in stock-based compensation expense due

to the completion of the vesting of options granted during fiscal year 2009

Gain Loss on Sale of Business

Gain loss on sale of business for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was associated with settlements related to the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on

November 2009

Business Interruption Insurance Recovery

In fiscal year 2012 we recognized business interruption proceeds of $450000

Years Ended

June 30

Results of Operations
Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Selling general and ad nistrative expenses

Research and development

Business intexruption insurance recsvery

Gain loss on sale of business

Operating income

Interest expense net

Other income

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Income attributable to nonemitmiling interest net of tax

Net income attributable to Globe Specialty Metals Inc

Net Sales

Increase Percentage

2012 2011 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

705544 641863 63681 9.9%

552873 488018 64855 13.3

61623 54739 6884 12.6%

127 87 40 46.0

450 45O NA

54 4249 4303 NA

91425 94110 f3345 35%
7367 2984 4383 l46.9

2578 928 1650 1778%

86636 92714 6078 6.6o
28760 35988 7228 20.1%

57876 56726 1150 2.0c

3306 3918 612 15.6%

54570 52808 1762 3.3%

Silicon metal

Silicon-based alloys

Silicon metal and silieonbased alloys

Silica fume and other

Year Ended June 30 2012

Net Sales

$/MT

2835

2134

2502
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Nd inferexi Expense

Net interest expense increased by $4383000 mainly attributable to new term loan acquired to finance the Alden Resources acquisition during the first quarter of

iscal 2012 which led to an increase in net interest expense of approximately $2047000 The Companys senior credit facility and term loan were repaid and

cancelled on May 31 2012 and the associated deferred financing costs of approximately $1600000 were charged to interest expense in the fourth quarter of fiscal

ear 2012 Additionally interest expense on the revolving credit facility increased as result of higher average outstanding balance year over year

Other Income

Other income increased by $1650000 primarily due to foreign exchange gains resulting from the revaluation of long-term reais denominated liabilities partially

set by foreign exchange losses due to currency fluctuations associated with the Polish Zloty Chinese Renminbi and Furo

Provision/or income Taxes

Provision for income taxes as percentage of pre-tax income was approximately 33% or $28760000 in fiscal year 2012 and was approximately 39% in fiscal

year 2011 The decrease in effective tax rate is primarily due to reduced state taxes and reduced foreign losses which are not deductible for tax purposes.

Segment Operations

IMI

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2012 2011 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

lee sales 631495 549418 82077 14.9%

osi of goods sold 4of.85 422775 771184

Selling general and administrative expenses 28544 22.958 5586 24.3%

Itusiness interruption insurance iecoser\ l4St 4sti

Operating income 103542 103685 143 0.1%

ci sales increased 82 177 ti or from lii prior ear to $3 45 tOO lie increase ss ts primari ietri butable to an 80 increase in our average selling

price and increase in metric tons sold The as erage selling price for silicon metal increased 5% and was primarily due to higher pricing of the annual calendar

1012 contracts versus calendar 2010 contracts and improved spot pricing in fiscal year 2012 The average selling pricing for silicon-based alloys increased 14%

primarily due to an increase in magnesium ferrosilicon pricing driven by strong demand from the automotive industry pass through of higher rare earth costs and an

increase in ferrosilieon pricing as demand improved from the steel industry Silicon metal volume increased 3% primarily due to the acquisition of Quebec Silicon

which contributed 2010 tons in fiscal year 2012 and improved operating performance of our fumaees Silicon-based alloy
volume increased 2% primarily due to

leniand from the steel industry and timing of shipments

Operating income decreased by $143000 from the prior fiscal year to $103542000 This decrease is primarily due to an 18% increase in cost olgoods sold on

increase in tons sold Cost of goods sold increased due to the impact of the fire at our Bridgeport Alabama
facility planned major maintenances higher rare earth

costs year over year and the acquisition of Quebec Silicon These cost increases were partially offset by the impact of $4300000 of expense related to the

Satisfaction of the long-term supply contract in the second quarter of fiscal year 2011 and an 8% increase in average selling prices Additionally selling general and

rdministrative expenses increased as result of acquisitions during fiscal year 2012 which contributed $2152000 and $254000 for Alden and Quebec Silicon

respectively

Globe Metai.s

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2012 2011 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Net sales l54l 15.421 100.0%

Osi of goods sold 4.948 4948 ff0.0

Selling general and administrative expenses 36 74 97.4%

Operating loss iflronie
tI 97 399 Itttt.o

Net sales uleereased $1 5421 Oifti troui the
prior year to $0 The decrease as due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on November

20119 Suhsequcnt to this divestiture remaining Globe Metais sales related ml to the fulfillment of certain retained customer contracts with product purchased

from our former Brazilian manufacturing operations at purchase price equal to our sales price These customer contracts were fulfilled at the end of the second

quarter of fiscal year 2011 and no further sales will be made under this arrangement

Operating income decreased by $399000 from the prior year to loss of $2000 The decrease was due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing

operations Selling general and administrative expenses decieased by $74000 primarily due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufaeturing operations on

November 2009
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Globe Metales

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2012 2011 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Net sales 64063 62321 1742 2.8%

Cost of goods sold 49084 45316 3768 8.3c

Selling general and administrative expenses 3647 3808 161 4.2%

Operating income 11332 13197 1865 14.10

Net sales increased $1742000 or 3c from the prior year to $64063000 This increase was primarily attributable to increase in average selling prices

partially offset by decrease in metric tons sold Pricing increased on magnesium ferrosilicon and cored wire due to pass through of higher rare earth costs and

mix shift to higher priced specialty cored wire fonnulations Volumes decreased on shipments of magnesium ferrosilicon and calcium silicon due to slowing of

Furopean demand partially offset by increasing demand from the automotive sector

Operating income decreased by $1865000 from the prior year to 511332000 The decrease was primarily due to higher production costs partially offset by

higher selling prices Cost of goods sold increased by while volumes decreased 4c primarily due to higher power and raw material costs and higher payroll

related expenses

SoLsil

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2012 2011 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Net sales 9420 942 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 526 488 38 7.8

Selling general and administrative expenses 331 175 156 801%

Research and development 127 87 40 46.0%

Operating loss income 984 8670 9654 111.3%

Net sales decreased from $9420000 in the prior year to $0 This decrease was due to the recognition of $9400000 in previously deferred revenue as the BP

Solar technology license joint development and supply agreement was terminated during the second quarter of fiscal year 2011

Operating income decreased by $9654000 om the prior year to loss of $984000 The primary driver of this decrease was the recognition of $9400000 in

previously defirred revenue as the BP Solar technology license joint development and supply agreement was terminated during the second quarter of fiscal year

2011

Corporate

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2012 2011 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Selling general and administrative expenses 27322 25357 1965 7.7%

Gain loss on sale of business 54 4249 4.303 NA

operating loss 2768 29606 2338 7.9%

Operating loss decreased by $2338000 from the prior year to $27268000 Selling general and administrative expenses increased by $1965000 year over year

mainly attributable to an increase in bonus expense of $2130000 due to profitability improvement and an increase in transaction related expenses of approximately

$2308000 partially offset by decrease of $828000 in stock based compensation expense primarily due to the completion of vesting of options granted during 2009

Gain loss on sale of business for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was associated with settlements related to the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on

November 2009
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GStI Fiscal lear Ended June 311 211/ vs 211/fl

onso///a/ onion

ears Inded

June 30 Increase Iercenage

2011 2010 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Net sales 641863 47658 169205 35.8%

ost goods sold 488.0 390 19 97.925 25

Selling general and administiutive expenses S4719 47.875 6864 14.3%

Research and des elopment 87 200 113 56.5
ResUucturing charges 81 It NA

oss iai on sale bust ness 4741 9.7 .64

Operating income 94170 54286 40.484 74.6%

Interest pense let .84 4.154 .07 26.4o

Other income 928 4.575 t3.647l 79.7%

neonle be ire pros isbn ncome ta ses 02.7 S4.807 37 007 69.2

Provision tbr income taxes 35988 20539 15449 75.2%

Net income 56.72t 4.26 22.45$ So

Income attributable to noncontrolling Interest net of lax 3.918 167 3751 2246 1%

Net income atti ihutable to ilobe Spect.tIt Metals Inc
52.$0 101 S.70

Sole

acar nded June 30 20 aear Fnded June 30 2010

Net Sales \et Sales

in 000s MT S/MT .5 in 000s MT S/MT

Silicon metal 47599 12.607 .835 96763 118.327 2508

Silicon-based aIlos 236.607 10.86$ 2134 148.092 76.144 1945

Silicon metal and silicon-based alloys 584206 233.475 .502 444.855 194471 2.288

Silica tunic and other 57.657 27.$tG

Total net sales
641863 472658

Net sales increased $169205000 or 36% from the prior year to $641863000 primarily as result of 20% increase in metrtc tons sold and 9% increase in our

average selling price The increase in metric tons sold resulted in an increase in net sales of $78269000 Silicon metal volume sold was higher due to increased

demand which led us to reopen our Niagara Falls New York facility in November 2009 which contributed approximately 7900 incremental metric tons and our

Selma Alabama facility
in January 2010 which contributed approximately 11500 incremental metric tons sold during fiscal year 2011 These increases were offset

by the decrease in volume due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on November 2009 Subsequent to this divestiture remaining

Globe Metais sales related only to the fulfillment of certain retained customer contracts with product purchased from our former Brazilian manufacturing operations at

purchase price equal to our sales price These customer contracts were fulfilled at the end of the second quarter of fiscal year 2011 and no further sales will be made

under this arrangement The increase in volume includes the impact of the Core Metals acquisition which contributed approximately 25397 incremental metric tons

in fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010 Additionally end market demand for ferrosilicon and magnesium ferrosilicon increased in fiscal year 2011 due to the

economic recovery particularly in steel and automotive production

The increase in average selling price of 9% resulted in increased net sales of approximately $61082000 The increase in pricing was primarily due to higher

pricing of the annual calendar 2011 contracts and higher spot pricing The increase in pricing was also due to improved demand from the economic recovery offset by

the impact of the acquisition of Core Metals in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 which resulted in mix shift towards the production of ferrosilicon Ferrosilicon

is our lowest priced alloy and also has the lowest cost of production Other revenue increased by $29854000 as result of $13956000 of incremental other sates

rom Core Metals during fiscal year 2011 and the recognition of $9400000 in previously deferred revenue from Solsil as the technology license Joint development

and supply agreement with BP Solar International Inc BP Solar was terminated in the second quarter of fiscal year 2011

oat of Goods Sold

The $97925000 or 25% increase in cost of gocds sold was result of 20% increase in metric tons sold as well as 4% increase in our cost per ton sold This

increase in cost per ton sold was primarily due to the impact of planned furnace maintenance outages at GMI and Core Metals higher power rates at Globe Metales

and GMI and $4300000 of expense related to satisfaction of the long-term supply contract in fiscal year 2011 These cost increases were partially offset by the

impact of reduced start-up costs of approximately $6500000 at our Niagara Falls and Selma plants in the year over year period the mix shift to ferrostlicon which

has our lowest cost of production and the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on November 2009

Gross margin represented approximately 24% or net sales in fiscal year 2011 and increased from 17% of net sales in fiscal year 2010 primarily as result of

higher silicon metal and silicon-based alloy selling prices partially
offset by higher power costs at Globe Metales and GMI as well as the impact of reduced margins

on the sale of product purchased from our former Brazilian manufacturing operations

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

The increase in selling general and administrative expenses of $6864000 or 14% was primarily result of the impact of the acquisition of Core Metals which

incrementally increased expense by $2458000 and an increase in due diligence and transaction-related costs and audit and other professional fees including

Sarbancs-Oxley Act compliance related expenditures of approximately $4369000 and $576000 respectively at Corporate Additionally bonus expense at

Corporate increased approximately $1794000 due to profitability improvement year over year These cost increases were partially offset by decrease of

approximately $2488000 at Globe Metais due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations
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Loss Gain on Sale qi Business

Loss gain on sale of business for fiscal year 2010 was associated with the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on November 2009 subsequent

settlement associated with our Brazilian manufacturing operations was recorded in fiscal year 201

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense decreased by $1070000 primarily due to lower interest rate swap expense of approximately $755000 at GMI as well as the timing of the

sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations on November 2009 which resulted in reduction in net interest expense of $347000

Other Income

Other income decreased by $3647000 due primarily to foreign exchange gain of $3773000 at Globe Metais in fiscal year 2010 The foreign exchange gain at

Globe Mctais consisted of foreign exchange gains of $2924000 primarily associated with the revaluation of long-term reais denominated tax liabilities and gain of

$849000 on our foreign exchange forward contracts These foreign exchange fluctuations no longer occur following the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing

operations on November 2009

Provision jr Income Taxes

Provision thr income taxes as percentage of pre-tax income was approximately 39% or $35988000 in fiscal year 2011 and was approximately 37% or

$20539000 in fiscal year 2010 The increase in the effective tax rate is primarily due to the benefit associated with the recording of certain state tax credits partially

offset by the recognition of $9395000 in income tax expense associated with the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing operations in fiscal year 2010

Segment Operations

GM

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2011 2010 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Net sales 549418 358279 191139 53.3%

ost of goods sold 422.775 2% 122 26.53 42.X

Selling general and adminhsirative expeusea 22958 211 12 1846 8.7%

Restructuring charges $1 NA

Operating income 103.685 41126 62.559 152.1%

Net sales increased $191139000 or 53% from the prior year to $549418000 The increase was primarily attributable to 35% increase in metric tons sold

Volume was higher primarily due to increased demand which led us to reopen our Niagara Falls New York facility in November 2009 which contributed

approximately 7900 incremental metric tons and our Selma Alabama facility in January 2010 which contributed approximately 11500 incremental metric tons sold

during fiscal year 2011 Volume was also higher due to the acquisition of Core Metals and an increase in end market demand primarily from the steel and automotive

industries for ferrosilicon and magnesium ferrosilicon in fiscal year 2011 The Core Metals acquisition contributed approximately 25397 incremental metric tons in

fiscal year 2011 Pricing increased 12% due to higher pricing of the annual calendar 2011 contracts and improved spot pricing in fiscal year 2011 offset by the impact

of the Alloy joint venture pricing As result of the acquisition of Core Metals in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 there was product mix shift towards

ferrosilicon which is our lowest priced alloy and also has the lowest cost of production This impact was offset by higher pricing on ferrosilicon and magnesium

ferrosilicon products due to increased market demand

The GM segment includes the Alloy joint venture which was entered into on November 2009 and sells 49% of the output of the Alloy plant to Dow Coming

Corporation Dow Coming at cost We control the joint venture and consolidate its results in our financial statements As result of the joint venture GM ls gross

margin has been negatively impacted by virtue of the material sold to Dow Coming at cost The increase in pricing for silicon metal during fiscal year 2011 more than

offset this impact and resulted in increased gross margin year over year

Operating income increased by $62559000 from the prior year to $103685000 This increase was primarily due to higher volumes shipped of silicon-based

alloys and silicon metal and higher average selling prices for silicon metal Cost of goods sold increased by 43% while volumes increased by only 35% This was

result of an increase in the cost per ton sold due to the impact of planned furnace maintenance outages higher power rates and $4300000 of expense related to

satisfaction of the long-term supply contract in fiscal year 2011 offset by the impact of reduced start-up costs of approximately $6500000 at our Niagara Falls and

Selma plants in the year over year period The addition of Core Metals incrementally contributed $2458000 to selling general and administrative expenses in fiscal

year 2011

Globe Metais

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2011 2010 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Net sales 1542 62.126 46705 75.2%

os goods sold 14.948 53U9 38 143

Selling general and adminisftative expenses 76 2.564 2488
Research arid des elopmenl

Loss on sale of business 1.197 11971 NA

Operating income 397 5263 4866 92.5%
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Net sales decreased $46705000 or 75% from the prior year to $15421000 The decrease was primarily attributable to decrease in metric tons sold of 69% and

decrease in average selling prices of 17% The decrease in volume was due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manuicturing operations on November 52009

Subsequent to this divestiture remaining Globe Mctais sales related only to the fulfillment of certain retained customer contracts with product purchased from our

fbnner Brazilian manufacturing operations at purchase price equal to our sales price These customer contracts were fulfilled at the end of the second quarter of

liscal year 2011 and no further sales will be made under this arrangement The decrease in pricing was due to the year over year currency impact of Euro

denominated contracts

Operating income decreased by $4866000 or 93% from the prior year to $397000 The decrease was primarily due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian

manufacturing operations which led to lower sales olumes as well as the impact of reduced margins on the sale of product purchased from our former Brazilian

manufacturing operations Selling general and administrative expenses decreased by $2488000 primarily due to the timing of the sale of our Brazilian manufacturing

operations on November 2009 Results in fiscal year 2010 also included transaction costs of $1197000 associated with the sale of the Brazilian manufacturing

operations

tIobe Metaec

June 30 Increase Percentage

2011 2010 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations
Net saks 62.321 48959 13.362 27.3%

ost ol goods sHILl 45.3 5.63 .68

Selling general and administrative expenses 3.808 25l 557 17.1%

Operating income
3.107 10.073 3.124 31

Net sales increased 513.362.000 or 27% from the prior year to $62321000 This increase was primarily attributable to 21% increase in average selling prices

as well as 5% increase in metric tons sold Pricing increased on magnesium firrosilicon and calcium silicon due to improving demand especially in the automotisc

and steel end markets Additionally pricing increased due to mix shift from ferrosilicon the lowest priced alloy to calcium silicon and magnesium ferrosilicon

Volumes increased from higher shipments of magnesium ferrosilicon and calcium silicon as demand in the automotive and steel end markets continues to recover

Operating income increased by $3124000 from the prior year to $13197000 The increase was primarily due to higher average selling prices offset by higher

production costs Cost of goods sold increased by 27% primarily due to higher power raw material and freight costs and higher wage expense while volumes

increased by only 5% Power costs increased beginning in November 2009 as our long-term power agreement expired Additionally selling general and

administrative expenses increased $557000 primarity due to higher wage expense as result of the terms of the union contract signed at the beginning of fiscal year

2011

So/si

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2011 2010 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of lerai bus

Net sales 9420 20 9400 47.000.0%

ost of goods sold 488 823 1335 141.7

Selling general and administrative expenses 175 385 t210 54.5%

Research and des elopment
87 187 10t

_______________________

Operating income loss
8.670 .1375 10.045 730.5%

Net sales increased 59.400.001 lout the
prior

sear to Sil40000 his inciease ssas priniaril due to the recognition of 5Q.400U00 iii previousls deleired revenue

ass the HP Solar technolog license joint development and supply agreement was terminated during the second quarter of li.cal \car 2011

Operating income loss increased by $10045000 from the prior year to $8670000 The primary driver of this increase was the recognition of $9400000 in

previously deferred revenue as the tIP Solar technology license joint development and supply agreement was terminated during the second quarter of fiscal year

2011 The decrease in cost of goods sold of $335000 from the prior year to $488000 was result of Solsils suspension of commercial production and enhanced

ftcus on refining its production processes to improve yield and reduce the cost of production As result of these changes selling general and administrative

expenses decreased $210000 and research and development expenses decreased $100000

Corporate

Years Ended

June 30 Increase Percentage

2011 2010 Decrease Change

Dollars in thousands

Results of Operations

Selling general and administrative expenses 25357 18422 6.935 37.6%

loss gain on sale of business 4.240 21.237 25.486

Operating loss income 29606 2815 32.421 1.151.7%

peratuig loss income decreased 32.42 1.000 from ihe
prior

year to 529.606.1100 iscal scar 211 included 521.237.000 gain on he sale of the

manufacturing opcratioits
of Globe Metais which ss.is net of transaction espenses and the recording of certain retained liabilities subsequent settlement of retained

acquisition contingencies was recorded in fiscal year 2011 Selling general amid administrative expenses increased by $6935000 primarily due to an increase in due

diligence and transaction-related costs and audit and other professional fees including Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance related expenditures of approximately

$4369000 and $576000 respectively Additionally bonus expense increased approximately $1794000 due to profitability improvement year over year
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash and cash equivalents balance cash flows from operations and unused commitments under our existing credit

facilities At June 30 2012 our cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately $178010000 and we had $194254000 available for borrowing under our

existing financing arrangements We generated cash flows from operations totaling $103907000 during the year ended June 30 2012

As of June 30 2012 the amount of cash and cash equivalents included in the Companys consolidated cash that was held by foreign subsidiaries was

approximately $52518000 If these funds are needed for operations in the U.S the Company will be required to accrue and pay taxes in the U.S to repatriate these

funds however the Companys intent is to permanently reinvest these funds outside the U.S and the Companys current plans do not indicate need to repatriate

them to fund operations in the U.S

Certain of our subsidiaries borrow hinds in order to finance working capital requirements and capital expansion programs The terms of certain of our financing

arrangements place restrictions on distributions of funds to us however we do not expect this to have an impact on our ability to meet our cash obligations We

believe we have access to adequate resources to meet our needs for normal operating costs capital expenditure and working capital for our existing business Our

ability to fund planned capital expenditures and make acquisitions will depend upon our future operating performance which will be affected by prevailing economic

conditions in our industry as well as financial business and other factors some of which are beyond our control

In July 2011 we closed on the acquisition of Alden Resources LLC North Americas leading miner processor and supplier of specialty metallurgical coal to the

silicon and silicon-based alloys industries We financed the acquisition with $18200000 of cash

In September 2011 the Companys Board of Directors approved dividend of $0.20 per common share The dividend totaling $15007000 was paid on October

28 2011 to stockholders of record as of October 14 2011 In August 2012 the Companys Board of Directors approved an annual dividend of $0.25 per common

share payable quarterly in September 2012 December 2012 March 2013 and June 2013 The Board of Directors authorized quarterly dividend of $00625 per

common share on September 19 2012 to shareholders of record at the close of business on September 52012

In June 2012 we closed on the acquisition of Beeancour Silicon Metal Inc.s 51% equity interest in Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership and other working capital

assets We financed the acquisition with $8803000 of cash

In August 2012 the Board authorized the Company to offer to amend outstanding options representing the right to purchase shares issued to directors officers and

current employees pursuant to the Companys 2006 Employee Director and Consultant Stock Plan to permit these options alternatively to be settled for cash or

exercised for the issuance of shares at the election of the option holder The Company anticipates that these amendments will result in mark-to-market accounting

with respect to the subject options and the expense associated with these amendments is approximately $24000000

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our primary sources uses of cash during the periods presented

Year Ended June 30
2012 2011 2010

Dollars in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 166.208 157029 61876

ash Ibis pros idcd hs used nil operating aclis ilies 03.907 88 02551

Cash flows used in investing activities 151705 515 12 16I59
ash Iboiss pros ided financing aclis flies 69.802 81 130560

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 262 578

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 178010 166208 157029

Operating Activities

Our business is cyclical and cash flows from operating activities may fluctuate during the year and from year-to-year due to economic conditions

Net cash provided by operating activities was $103907000 and $61188000 during fiscal year 2012 and 2011 respectively The $42719000 increase in net cash

provided by operating activities was primarily due to reduction in net working capital during fiscal year 2012 compared with hiscal year 2011 as well as improved

operating results. Inventories decreased during fiscal year 2012 compared to an increase in fiscal year 2011 due to lower electrode inventory levels compared to the

prior year period and the sale of manganese ore which was purchased as raw material and ultimately not used in production The increases in cash were offset by an

increase in accounts receivable due to increased shipment volumes at the end of fiscal year 2012 In fiscal year 2011 cash from operations was impacted by growth in

inventory primarily related electrode inventory which was subsequently used in current year production partially offset by gain on the sale of our Brazilian

manufacturing operations

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $151705000 and $51512000 during fiscal year 2012 and 2011 respectively In fiscal year 2012

$73200000 of cash was used net of cash acquired in the acquisition of Alden Resources LLC Additionally $36517000 of cash was to fund net of cash acquired

the purchase of certain assets of Beeancour Silicon in June 2012 Year over year capital expenditures increased from approximately $41836000 to $35039000 in

the current fiscal year due to furnace overhauls at our GMI plants as well as the purchase and refurbishment of equipment at Alden Resources

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $59862000 and $81000 during fiscal years 2012 and 2011 respectively During fiscal year 2012

the acquisitions of Alden Resources and Quebec Silicon were partially
financed with borrowings of long-term debt of $50000000 and $31800000 respectively In

May 2012 we entered into credit agreement which provides for $300000000 five-year revolving multi-currency credit
facility

The credit
facility refinanced

existing debt and closing costs of $96550000 dividend payment of $15007000 and $11269000 was paid to our common stockholders during fiscal years 2012

and 2011 respectively

Exchange Rate Change on Cash

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash was related to fluctuations in renminbi the functional currency of our Chinese subsidiary Yonvey
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Commitments and Contractual Obligations

The following tables summarize our contractual obligations at June 30 2012 and the effects such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows

in future periods

Contractual Obligations Less than One to Three to More than

as of June 30 2012 Total One Year Three Years Five Years Years

Dollars in thousands

Opetating lease obligatins 6346 326 3080

Capital lease obligations 14298 2544 7512 4242

The table above also excludes certain other obligations reflected in our consolidated balance sheet including estimated funding for pension obligations for which

the timing of payments may vary based on changes in the fair value of pension plan assets and actuarial assumptions We expect to contribute approximately

54128000 to our pension plans for the year ended June 30 2013

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements or relationships with unconsolidated entities of financial partnerships such as entities often referred

to as structured finance or special purpose entities

Litigation and Contingencies

We are subject to various lawsuits claims and proceedings that arise in the normal course of business including employment commercial environmental safety

and health matters as well as claims associated witi our historical acquisitions and disestitures Although it is not presently possible to determine the outcome of

these matters in the opinion of management the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position

results of operations or liquidity

At June 30 2012 and June 30 2011 there are no liabilities recorded for environmental contingencies With respect to the cost for ongoing environmental

compliance including maintenance and monitoring such costs are expensed as incurred unless there is long-term monitoring agreement with governmental

agency in which case liability is established at the Inception of the agreement

Accounting Pronouncements to be Implemented

In June 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation o/ Gomprehensive income ASU

20/1-05 The objective of this amendment is to increase the prominence of other comprehensive income in the financial statements The amendments require entities

Lo report components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either in continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate

hut consecutive statements Additionally the amendments in ASU 2011-05 require an entity to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification

adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the statements where the components of net income and the

omponcnts of other comprehensive income are presented In December 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2011-12 which deferred the

specific requirements related to the presentation of reclassification adjustments This amendment is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years

beginning after December 15 2011 We expect the adoption of this ASU will affect financial statement presentation only

In September 2011 FASI3 issued Accounting Standards Update No 2011-08 Testing Goodwill/or impairment ASL 2011-08 which amends the guidance in

ASC 350-20 The amendments in ASU 2011-08 proside entities with the option of performing qualitative assessment before performing the first step of the two-step

impairment test If entities determine on the basis factors it is not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying

amount then performing the two-step impairment test would be unnecessary however if an entity concludes otherwise then it is required to perform the first step of

the two-step impairment test by calculating the fair value of the reporting unit and comparing the fair value with the carrying amount of the reporting unit If the

carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its fair value then the entity is required to perform the second step of the goodwill impairment test to measure the amount

of the impairment loss if any ASU 2011-08 also provides entities with the option to bypass the qualitative assessment for any reporting unit in any period and

proceed directly to the first step
of the two-step impairment test ASU 2011-08 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 but early

adoption is permitted The Company does not expect material financial statement implications relatmg to the adoption of this ASU

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We arc exposed to market risks arising from adverse changes in

commodity prices

interest rates and

foreign exchange rates

In the normal course of business we manage thcse risks through variety of strategies including obtaining captive or long-term contracted raw material supplies

and hedging strategies Obtaining captive or long-term contracted raw material supplies involves the acquisition of companies or assets for the purpose of increasing

our access to raw materials or the identification and effective implementation of long-term leasing rights or supply agreements We enter into derivative instruments to

hedge certain commodity price interest rate and foreign currency risks We do not engage in commodity interest rate or currency speculation and no derivatives are

held fbr trading purposes

All derivatives are accounted for using mark-to-market accounting We believe it is not practical to designate our derivative instruments as hedging instruments as

defined under ASC Subtopic 815-10 Derivotive.c and I/edging ASC 815 Accordingly we adjust our derivative financial instruments to current market value

through the consolidated statement of income based on the fair value of the agreement as of period-end Although not designated as hedged items as defined under

ASC 815 these derivative instruments serve to significantly
offset our commodity interest rate and currency risks Gains or losses from these transactions offset

gains or losses on the assets liabilities or transactions being hedged No credit loss is anticipated as the counterparties to our derivative agreements are major

financial institutions that are highly rated

The sensitivity
of our derivatives to these markei fluctuations is discussed below See our June 30 2011 consolidated financial statements for further discussion of

these derivatives and our hedging policies
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Commodity Prices

We arc exposed to price risk for certain raw materials and energy used in our production process The raw materials and energy which we use are largely

commodities subject to price volatility caused by changes in global supply and demand and governmental controls Derivative financial instruments are not used

extensively to manage our exposure to fluctuations in the cost of commodity products used in our operations We attempt to reduce the impact of increases in our raw

material and energy costs by negotiating long-term contracts and through the acquisition of companies or assets for the purpose of increasing our access to raw

materials with favorable pricing terms We have entered into long-term power supply contracts that result in stable favorably priced long-term commitments for the

majority of our power needs Additionally we have long-term lease mining rights
in the U.S that supply us with substantial portion of our requirements for

quartzite We also have obtained captive supply of electrodes through our 70% ownership interest in Yonvey

In June 2010 we entered into power hedge agreement on 175440 MWh notional amount of electricity representing approximately 20% of the total power

required by our Niagara Falls New York plant This hedge covers our expected needs not supplied by the facilitys long-term power contract over the term of the

hedge agreement The notional amount decreases equally per month through the agreements expiration on June 30 2012 Under the power hedge agreement we

fixed the power rate at $39.60 per MWh over the life of the contract In October 2010 we entered into power hedge agreement on 87600 MWh notional amount

of
electricity

The agreement is effective July 2012 and the notional amount decreases equally per month through the agreements expiration on June 30 2013

Under the power hedge agreement we fixed the power rate at $39.95 per MWh over the life of the contract

The $742000 liability
associated with the fair value of our power hedge agreements at June 30 2012 is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities

To the extent that we have not mitigated our exposure to rising raw material and energy prices we may not be able to increase our prices to our customers to offset

such potential raw material or energy price increases which could have material adverse effect on our results of operations and operating cash flows

Interest Rates

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on certain of our short-term and long-term debt obligations The Company had outstanding total debt

at June 30 2012 of $140703000 with interest rates arranging from 2% to 5% The Company previously entered into interest rate cap arrangement and swap

agreements to mitigate the risk of interest rate fluctuations on its recently terminated senior credit facility and long-term debt The Company settled these agreements

in connection with the termination of the senior credit facility and long-term debt The Company would consider entering into hedge agreements to mitigate the

interest rate risk if conditions warrant

If market interest rates were to increase or decrease by 10% for the full 2013 fiscal year as compared to the rates in effect at June 30 2012 we estimate that the

change would not have material impact to our cash flows or results of operations

Ioreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to market risk arising from changes in currency exchange rates as result of operations outside the United States principally in Argentina and

China portion of our net sales generated from our non-U.S operations is denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar Most of our operating costs for our

non-U.S operations are denominated in local currencies principally the Argentine peso and the Chinese renminbi Consequently the translated U.S dollar value of

our non-U.S dollar sales and related accounts receivable balances and our operating costs are subject to currency exchange rate fluctuations Derivative instruments

are not used extensively to manage this risk We have utilized derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange forward contracts to manage portion of

our net foreign currency exposure to the Brazilian real and the Euro All of the Brazilian real contracts were settled prior to the sale of the manufacturing operations ol

Globe Metais

If foreign exchange rates were to increase or decrease by 10% for the full 2013 fiscal year as compared to the rates in effect at June 30 2012 we estimate that the

change would not have material impact to our cash flows or results of operations

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements appearing on pages 35 to 63 are incorporated herein by reference

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer we evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15e or Sd-I 5e Based on that evaluation the

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by

this report

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and for the assessment of the effectiveness of

internal controls over financial reporting Our internal control system over financial reporting is process designed under the supervision of our Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

The Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable

detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts

and expenditures of the

Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the Companys financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of

effi.ctiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate
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In connection with the preparation of our annual consolidated financial statements management has undertaken its assessment of the elThctivcness of our internal

control over financial reporting as of June 30 2012 based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Managements assessment included an evaluation of the design of our internal control over financial reporting

md testing of the operational effectiveness of those controls Based on this assessment management has concluded that the Companys intemal control over financial

reporting was effective as of June 30 2012

Managements evaluation on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include Quebec Silicon which we acquired on June 13 2012 as

management concluded that it was not possible to conduct an assessment of Quebec Silicons internal control over financial reporting in the period between the

onsummation date and the date of managements evaluation The revenues of Quebec Silicon which included in our June 30 2012 consolidated financial statements

starting on June 13 2012 represented than less 1% cf our net sales for the year ended June 30 2012 and represented approximately 15% of total assets as of June 30
2012

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounhing Firm

KPMG LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our consolidated financial statements included in this report has issued its report on

the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting copy of which appears on page 37 of this annual report

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our intemal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter ended June 30 2012 that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III

Certain information required by Part Ill is omitted from this report in that we will file definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A with respect to our

2012 Annual Meeting the Proxy Statement no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report and certain information included therein is

incorporated herein by reference Only those sections of the Proxy Statement which specifically
address the items set forth herein are incorporated by reference

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Except as set forth below the information required by this Item is hereby incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement

Set forth below is certain information about our executive officers

Name Age Position

Alan Kestenbaum 50 Executive Chairman and Director

Jeff Bradley 52 Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer

Malcolm Appelbaum 51 Chief Financial Officer

Stephen Lebowitz 47 Chief Legal Officer

Alan Kestenhaum has served as Executive Chairman and Director since our inception in December 2004 and served as Chief Executive Oflicer from our

inception through May 2008 From June 2004 Mr Kestenbaum served as Chairman of Globe Metallurgical Inc until its acquisition by us in November 2006 He has

over 20 years of experience in metals including finance distribution trading and manufacturing Mr Kestenbaum is founder and the Chief Executive Officer of

Marco International Corp and its affiliates finance trading group specializing in metals minerals and other raw materials founded in 1985 Mr Kestenbaum was

involved in the expansion by certain of Marco Internationals affiliates into China and the former Soviet Union lie also established affiliated private equity businesses

in 1999 which were involved in sourcing and concluding number of private equity transactions including ones relating to MeCook Metals Scottsboro Aluminum

and Globe Metallurgical Inc From 1997 until June 2008 Mr Kestenbaum was also the Vice President of Marco ui-Tech iv LLC nutritional ingredient supplier to

the nutritional supplement industry Mr Kestenbaum serves as member of the Board of Directors of Wolverine Tube Inc provider of copper and copper alloy

tube fabricated products and metal joining products and between January 2006 and June 2008 served as director of Neuro-Ilitech Inc development stage

pharmaceutical company Mr Kestenbaum began his career in metals with Glencore Inc and Philipp Brothers in New York City lie received his BA in Economics

cum laude from Yeshiva University New York

Jeff Bradley has served as our Chief Executive Officer since May 2008 and our Chief Operating Officer since August 2010 From June 2005 until February 2008

Mr Bradley served as Chairman Chief Executive Officer and Director of Claymoni Steel Holdings Inc company specializing in the manufacture and sale of

custom-order steel
plate

in the United States and Canada Mr Bradley was not employed after his February 2008 departure from Claymont Steel until he joined us in

May 2008 Prior to joining Claymont Steel from September 2004 to June 2005 Mr Bradley served as Vice President of
strategic planning for Dietrich Industries

construction products subsidiary of Worthington Industries From September 2000 to August 2004 Mr Bradley served as vice president and general manager ftr

Worthington Steel diversified metal processing company Mr Bradley holds B.S in Business Administration from Loyola College in Baltimore Maryland

Malcolm Appelbaum joined our company as Chief Financial Officer in September 2008 Prior to that from 2000 until September 2008 Mr Appelbaum served as

President of Appletree Advisors Inc financial consulting and advisory firm he founded to serve the portfolio companies of private equity firms and senior and

mezzanine lenders While at Appletree he served as Interim-Chief Financial Officer for several underperforming companies and assisted others as an outside

consultant Between 1992 and 2000 Mr Appelbaum was principal at Wand Partners Inc private equity investor At Wand he was the financial officer responsible

for the firm and worked extensively with portfolio companies and developed an investment practice closing several platform and add-on acquisitions Prior to Joining

Wand Partners Mr Appelbaum was an associate at MT Bank financial analyst at Goldman Sachs and senior consultant and senior accountant at Dcloitte

Touche Mr Appelbaum received B.S from Brooklyn College and an M.B.A from Columbia University

Stephen Lehowitz has served as our Chief Legal Officer since July 2008 Prior to that from 2001 to 2008 Mr Lebowitz was in-house counsel at BP p.l.c one of

the worlds largest petroleum companies to its jet fuel marine and solar energy divisions Prior to joining BP Mr Lebowitz was in private practice both as partner

at the law firm Ridberg Press and Aaronson and as an associate with the law firm Kaye Scholer LLP Mr Lebowitz holds B.A from the University of Vermont

received law degree from George Washington University and while overseas as Fulbright Scholar obtained an L.L.M in European law

Item Ii Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 36

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30 2012 and 2111 38

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 39

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 40

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30 2012 201 and 2010 41

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 42

Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable
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Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed with this Annual Report or neorporated by reference

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

2.1 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of March 26 2010 by and among Globe Metals Enterprises Inc Core Metals Group Holdings LLC and each

of the Sellers named therein

2.2 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated May 27 2011 by and among NGPC Asset Holdings II LPNGP Capital Resources Company and

Globe BG LLC relating to Alden Resources Inc

2.3 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated May 27 2011 by and among NGPC Asset Holdings II LPNGP Capital Resources Company and

Globe BG LLC relating to Gatliff Services Inc

2.4 Purchase Agreement dated May 27 2011 by and among NGP Capital Resources Company Globe BG LLC and Globe Specialty Metals Inc

regarding The Overriding Royalty Interests

2.5 Agreement of Purchase and Sale dated as of April 25 2012 by and among Becancour Silicon Inc Timminco Ltd QSI Partners Ltd and Globe

Specialty Metals Inc

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

3.2 Certificate of Amendment tothe Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporationI

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders Including Indentures

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of March 30 2011 by and among GMI Tennessee Alloys Company LLC and GSM Sales

Inc as borrowers Alabama Sand and Gravel Inc and Laurel Ford Resources Inc as subsidiary guarantors GSM as Parent the lender parties

thereto and Societe Generale as Administrative Agent Issuing Bank Swingline Lender and Collateral Agent and SG Americas Securities LLC as

Sole Arranger

4.2 Term Loan Agreement dated July 28 2011 by and among GBG holdings LLC Globe Specialty Metals Inc GSM Enterprises LLC the Lenders

from time to time party thereto and BNP Paribas as administrative agent collateral agent sole lead arranger and sole bookrunncr 13
4.3 Credit Agreement dated as of May 31 2012 among the Company certain subsidiaries of the Company from time to time party thereto Fifth Third

Bank as Administrative Agent and L/C issuer Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated as Joint Lead Arranger and Joint Book Runner

Bank of America N.A KeyBank National Association Sovereign Bank N.A and Wells Fargo Bank NA as Co-Syndication Agents and BBVA

Compass Bank Citibank NA. Citizens Bank Of Pennsylvania IISBC Bank USA NA and PNC Bank National Association as Co

Documentation Agents and the other lenders party thereto

We are party to other instruments defining the
rights

of holders of long-term debt No such instrument authorizes an amount of securities in excess

of 10 percent of the total assets of the company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis We agree to furnish copy of each such instrument to the

Commission on request

Material Contracts

10.1 Output and Supply Agreement dated as of October 2010 by and among Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership Bceancour Silicon Inc succeeded in

interest by QSIP Canada ULC and Dow Coming Corporation

10.2 Shareholders Agreement between all the Shareholders of Quebec Silicon General Partner Inc dated as of October 201 by and anlong Becancour

Silicon Inc succeeded in interest by QSIP Canada ULC Dow Coming Netherlands B.V and Quebec Silicon General Partner Inc

10.3 Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement dated as of October 12010 by and among Becancour Silicon Inc succeeded in interest by

QSIP Canada ULC Dow Coming Canada Inc and Quebec Silicon General Partner Inc

Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans

10.6 2006 Employee Director and Consultant Stock Option Plan

10.7 Amendments to 2006 Employee Director and Consultant Stock Option Plan

10.8 2010 Annual Executive Bonus Plan

10.9 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Legal Officer Annual Bonus Plan 10
10.10 Framework for the 2t II Annual Executive Long Term Incentive Plan II
10.11 Employment Agreement dated January 27 2011 between GSM and Alan Kestenbaum II
10.12 Employment Agreement dated July 52011 between GSM and JelTBradley 12
10.13 Employment Agreement dated November 30 2011 between GSM and Malcolm Appelbaum

10.14 Employment Agreement dated June 20 2008 between GSM and Stephen Lebowitz

10.15 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated October 27 2010 between GSM and Stephen Lebowitz

10.16 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

10.17 Director Deferred Compensation Plan

21.1 Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officers and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

95 Mine Safety Disclosure

101 The following materials from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2012 formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting

Language XBRL the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets ii the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income iii the Condensed

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity iv the Condensed onsolidated Statements of Cash Flows and notes to these

consolidated financial statements
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Filed with the Form 10-K filed August 28 2012

Filed with this Amendment No
In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the XBRL related documents in Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are deemed not filed or

part
of

registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Section II or Section 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for

purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise are not subject to liability under those Sections

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit with the same designation filed with the Companys registration statement on Form S-I Registration No 333-

152513 tiled on July 25 2008

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit with the same designation filed with Amendment No to the Companys registration statement on Form S-I

Registration No 333-152513 filed on Novcmber4 2008

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K filed on April 2011

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form l0-Q filed on February 82012

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 62012

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K filed on April 12010

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 32011

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form lO-Q filed on February 112011

Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 10-K filed on September 28 2010

10 Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form lO-Q filed on November 12 2010

II Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q filed on May 12 2011

12 Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 10-K filed on August 26 2011

13 Incorporated by reference to exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 2011
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this Amendment No Ito bc signed on

its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Globe Specialty Metals Inc Registrant

By /s/ Malcolm Appelbaum

Malcolm Appelbaum

Chief Financial Officer

August 30 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Globe Specialty Metals Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Globe Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies the Company as of June 30 2012 and

2011 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30

2012 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Globe Specially Metals Inc and

subsidiary companies as of June 30 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June

30 2012 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Globe Specialty Metals Inc and

subsidiary companies internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated August 27 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Companys intemal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

New York New York

August 27 2012

36



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Globe Specialty Metals Inc

We have audited Globe Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies the Company internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Globe

Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary

the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Company acquired Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership Quebec Silicon on June 13 2012 and management excluded Quebec Silicons internal control over

financial reporting from its assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2012 The acquisition of Quebec
Silicon contributed less than percent of the Companys total revenue for the year ended June 30 2012 and accounted for approximately 15 percent of the Companys
total assets as of June 30 2012 Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over

financial reporting of Quebec Silicon

In our opinion Globe Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of June

30 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Globe

Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies as of June 30 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders equity

and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30 2012 and our report dated August 27 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those

consolidated financial statements

s/ KPMG LLP

New York New York

August 27 2012
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GLOBE SPECIALTY METALS INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30 2012 and 2011

In thousands except share and per share amounts

2012 2011

ASSEIS

Current assets

ash and cash equt alents
75.110 66.205

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubthil accounts of $955

and $715 at June 30 2012 and 2011 respectively 85.258 60871

lit entones 119.441 109292

Prepaid expenses and other current asscts 27915 27 876

otal current assets
410.624 164.247

Properly plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation depletion and amortization 432761 229977

Goods ill
56740 51 501

Other intangible assets
477 477

Ins esl ments in uneonso dated all ales
92 5641

Dcferred tax assets
200 217

Other assets
2672S 21.205

Total assets
936747 678269

LIABILITIES AND STO KIIOLDERS EQtII I\

irnnt Ibihi ituec

\eeountspavahle
52.015 19947

Short-term debt 317 1094

Res uIs
ing

credit agreements
9111111 2111111

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 40602 34.475

lotal current liabilities IiiI.924 X7.5 lb

Long-term liabilities

Res uIs ing credit agreements 1St 34959

Deferred tax liabilities 8835 23264

her lungterm tahi Ii ties
70.5113 7.224

fotal liabilities
332948 162993

ounnitmenis and contingencies lute 151

Stockholders equity

omnion stock S0.000 par .due \uihuned 0.00t 100 shares issued 75 111111

.uid 75259 14 shares ai June 311 211 and 20 respeeti els

Additional paid in capital
405 675 399900

Retained earnings 9513 50 10

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

loreign ctirrenc% truislat mu adusinieni .2% 937

Pension liability adjustment net of tax 8.058k 3933

nrealiied gain on as ulahle Ijir sale securities net ut tas
135

otal accumulated other comprehensive loss 6840 2995

Treistir stock at cost 252.437 shares at June Ut 2112 and 201 14 14

Total Ulobe Specialty Metals Inc stockholders equity 8702 477.209

Psoncontrolling interest
55.1197 tS.0n7

Total stockholders equity
603.799 15.276

Total liabilities and stockholders equity
936747 675269

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBE SPECIALTY METALS INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010

In thousands except per share amounts

2012 2011 2010

Net sales 705544 641863 472658
ost of goods sold 552873 488018 390093

Selling general and administrative expenses 61623 54739 47875
Research and development 27 87 200

BusineSs intetmptien insurance recovery 450
Restructuring charges 81
Gain loss on sale of business 54 4249 19715

Operating income 91425 94770 54286
Other income expense

Interest income 243 214 318

Intetest expense net of capitalized interest 7610 3198 4372
Foreign exchange gain loss 1191 390 3811

Ober income 1387 1318 764

Income before provision for income taxes 86636 92714 54807

Provision for income taxes 28760 35988 20539

Net income 57876 56726 34268
Income attributable to noncontrolting interest net of lax 3.306 3918 167

Net income attributable to Globe Specialty Metals Inc 54570 52808 34101

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 75039 74925 73512
Ojiuted 76624 76624 74770

l-amings per common share

Basic 0.73 0.70 0.46

Diluted 0.71 0.69 0.46

Cash dividends declared per common share 020 0.15

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBE SPECIALTY METALS INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010

In thousands

Globe SpeciaIt %letals Inc Stockholders Equity

%ccumulated

%dditional Oilier Treasur Total

omnion Stock PaidIn Retai ned omprehensis Stock \oncontrolhng oniprehensis Stockholders

Shares %mount Capital Earnings Loss Income at Cost Interest Income Loss Equits

Balance at June 30 2009 66.944 303364 4460 3644 6969 @8.525 31 1352

Warranis exercised 257 .257 .257

UPOsexercised 1.519 210 210

Sharebased compensation 5.7
57

Stock option exercises 99 616 616

Stock issuance c.600 34.765 4765

Sale of noncontrotling interest 44397 27.012 1.409

Real iied cain on as able forsa Ic

securities
ID 10

comprehensive income loss

ureigo eurrenc translation adl usto tent 64 65 65

Pension
liability adjustment net of income

taxbenelitof$55fl 851 851 851
ureali/ed g.uo on asailablekirsale securities

net ol pros ision 6w ineonie taxes ol

SI

Net income 34101 167 34 268 34.268

ot.il eunipreliensise income 33.4h5 3345S

Balance at June 30 2010 74422 390 354 38761 4438 34149 458829

Sharebased compensation 4.132 4.332

Stock option exercises 864 5.214 5215

Cash is idend declared .269 .269

Comprehensive income

oreign eurreue translation ad ustment 795 79S 795

Pension liability adjustment net of income

taxbenetitof$4l91 647 647 647

gain on as ulablefoisale securities

net of pius isioii 6ur income taxes of

50

Net income 5SOS 3918 56726 S6726

otal eomprehensi income SX 69 55 ti9

Balance at June 30 011 75.290 399900 80.300 299l 38067 15.276

Share-based compensation 2.452 242

Stock option exercises 38 195 195

Sale of noneonuolluic uiterest 21 21

Cash dividend declared 15.007 007
Solsil shires puretizised

2.555 11.135

Acquisition of Quebec Silicon 46.762 46762

oiuprehensis income doss

Foreign currency tiimslation adjustment 19 19 19

Pension liahilits adustuieut net of incoiue

tax henelit 052.525 4.125 4.1 25

tJnrlied loss on available for sale securities

net of provision for income taxes of

$13 t39 39
Net income 54.570 1.306 57.571 7.576

Total comprehensive income 5401 54.03

lialance it Juiic 30 l2
7S332 415.675 9.563 6540 55097 60 799

See .ieeompan inc notes to consolidated inaneial stateuients
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GLOBE SPECIALTY METALS INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010

In thousands

57876

34000

848

2482

54
2180

9312
230

2608

10729

4505
5047

203

8790
103907

41836

109717

152
151705

50000

50000
1048

1825
136408

54462
5199

15007
195

1296
59862

262
11802

166208

178010

56726

25055

4332

4249
195

3538

4664
25355
1649
7833
6179
2773

61188

35039

2500

2038
16935

51512

17012
.4999..

11972
35989

5000
869

11269
5215

81

578
9179

157029

166208

2010

34268

20672

5712

19715
271

8123

29029
16326

6984

28290

1343

28821
19255

21917
11896

10518
22000

6000

616

1287

210

97917

36456

1387

130560

95153

61876

157029

2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Depletion

Share-based compensation

Gain loss on sale of business

Amortization of deferred financing fees

Deferred taxes

Accretion

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other corrent assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Other

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Cash flows fl-cm investing activities

Capital expenditures

Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired of $4090 $0 and $1873 during the

years ended June 3020122011 and 2010 respectively

Sale of businesses net of cash disposed of $0 $0 and $17132 during the

years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Working capital adjustments from acquisition of businesses net

Other investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings of Iong-tenn debt

Payments of long-term debt

Borrowings of short-tenn debt

Payments of short-term debt

Borrowings under revolving credit agreements

Payments under revolving credit agreements

Debt issuance costs

Dividend payment
Proceeds from stock option exercises

Proceeds from warrants exercised

Proceeds from UPOs exercised

Sale of noncontrolling interest

Sale of common stock

Other financing activities

Net eash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest net of capitalized interest

Cash paid for income taxes net of refunds totaling $3194 $586 and $2729 during the

years ended June 3020122011 and 2010 respectively

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

22901

53084

60559

733
16159

4475

22023

2533

19819

2494

51709
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GLOBE SPECIALTY METALS INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Organization and Business Operations

Globe Specialty Metals Inc and subsidiary companies GSM the Company we or Our among the worlds largest producers of silicon metal and silicon-based

alloys important ingredients in variety of industrial and consumer products The Companys customers include major silicone chemical aluminum and steel

manufacturers auto companies and their suppliers ductile iron foundries manufacturers of photovoltaic solar cells and computer chips and concrete producers

On November 13 2006 the Company acquired Globe Metallurgical Inc GMI manufacturer of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys GMI owns and operates

plants in Beverly Ohio Alloy West Virginia Niagara Falls New York and Selma Alabama GMIs products arc sold primarily to the silicone chemical aluminum

metal casting and solar cell industries primarily in the United States Canada and Mexico GMI also owns 50% of Norchem Inc Norchem Norchem manufactures

and sells additives that enhance the durability of concrete refractory material and oil well conditioners GMI sells silica fume also known as microsilica by

product of its ferrosilicon metal and silicon metal production process to Norchem as well as other companies

On November 20 2006 the Company acquired Stein Ferroaleaciones S.A SFA an Argentine manufacturer of silicon-based alloys and SFAs affiliate

UltraCore Polska Sp.z.o.o UCP Polish manufacturer of cored wire alloys SFA has been renamed Globe Metales S.A Globe Metales Globe Metales is

headquartered in Buenos Aires Argentina and operates silicon-based alloy manufacturing plant in Mendoza province Argentina and cored wire packing plants in

San Luis province Argentina and Police Poland Globe Mctales products are important ingredients in the manufacturing of steel ductile iron machine and auto

parts and pipe

On January 31 2007 the Company acquired Camargo Correa Metais S.A CCM one of Brazils
largest producers of silicon metal and silica fume CCM was

renamed Globe Metais lnd6stria ComØrcio S.A Globe Metais On November 2009 the Company sold 100% of its interest in Globe Metais The sale of the

Companys equity interest in Globe Metais was executed in connection with the sale of 49% membership interest in WVA Manufacturing LLC WVA LLC

newly formed entity by the Company to Dow Coming Corporation Dow Coming

On February 29 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of approximately 81% of Solsil Inc Solsil Solsil is continuing to develop its technology to

produce upgraded metallurgical grade silicon through proprietary metallurgical process for use in photovoltaic solar cells Solsil remains focused on research and

development and is not presently producing material for commercial sale On December 2011 the Company purchased all the shares held by one of Solsils

minority partners Additionally Solsil issued and sold new shares to the Company Subsequent to these stock purchase transactions the Company owns 97.25% ol

Solsil

On May 15 2008 the Company purchased an ownership interest of approximately 58% of Ningxia Yonvey Coal Industrial Co Ltd Yonvey Yonvey is

producer of carbon electrodes an important input in the silicon metal production process Yonvey now principally supplies its electrodes to our subsidiaries Yonveys

operations are located in Chonggang Industrial Park Shizuishan in the Ningxia 11w Autonomous Region of China On November 28 2008 the Company increased its

interest by an additional 12%

On April 2010 the Company acquired Core Metals Group Iloldings LLC Core Metals ore Metals is leading producer marketer and distributor ol

ferroalloys and specialty materials for the North American steel and foundry industry The acquisition was made to strengthen our growing ferrosilicon business and

expand the line of products and services we offer to steel markets around the world

On July 28 2011 the Company acquired Alden Resources LLC Alden and Gatliff Services LLC Gatliff collectively known as Alden Alden is North

Americas leading miner processor and supplier of specialty metallurgical coal to the silicon and silicon-based alloy industries The acquisition was made in order to

secure stable long-term and low-cost supply of specialty metallurgical coal key ingredient in the production of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys

On June 13 2012 the Company acquired Becancour Silicon Metal Inc.s BSI 51% equity interest in Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership QSLP
collectively known as Quebec Silicon The Company will operate Quebec Silicons silicon metal plant located in Becancour Quebec with its Joint

venture partner

Dow Coming

See note Business Combinations Investments and Divestitures for additional information regarding business combinations investments and divestitures

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Principles of consolidation

The Companys consolidated linancial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

U.S GAAP When the Company does not have controlling interest in an entity but exerts significant
influence over the entity the Company applies the equity

method of accounting For investments in which the Company does not have significant influence the cost method of accounting is used

The Company also evaluates the consolidation of entities under Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810

Consolidation ASC 810 ASC 810 requires management to evaluate whether an entity or interest is variable interest entity
and whether the Company is the primary

beneficiary Consolidation is required if both of these criteria are met The Company does not have any variable interest entities requiring consolidation

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in

the consolidated financial statements and related notes Significant estimates and assumptions in these consolidated financial statements include the valuation of

inventories the depreciable lives for property plant and equipment estimates of fair value associated with accounting br business combinations goodwill and long

lived asset impairment tests income taxes and deferred tax valuation allowances valuation of derivative instruments the determination of the discount rate and the

rate of return on plan assets for pension expense benefit and the determination of the fair value of share-based compensation involving assumptions about forfeiture

rates stock volatility discount rates expected dividend yield and expected time to exercise Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates actual

results reported in future periods may be different from these estimates
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with ASC Topic 605 Revenue Recognition ASC 605 when firm sales agreement is in place delivery has occurred and

tle and risks of ownership have passed to the customer the sales price is fixed or determinable and
collectability

is reasonably assured Shipping and other

iransportation costs charged to buyers are recorded in both net sales and cost of goods sold Sales taxes collected from customers and remitted to govemmental
.iuthorities are accounted for on net basis and therefore are excluded from net sales When the Company provides combination of products and services to

customers the arrangement is evaluated under ASC Subtopic 605-25 Revenue Recognition Multiple Element Arrangements ASC 605.25 ASC 605.25 addresses

certain aspects of accounting by vendor for arrangements under which the vendor will perform multiple revenue-generating activities If the Company cannot

bjectively determine the fair value of any undelivered elements under an arrangement the Company defers revenue until all elements are delivered and services have

leen performed or until fair value can objectively be determined for any remaining undelivered elements

Foreign Currency Translation

The determination of the functional currency for the Companys foreign subsidiaries is made based on appropriate economic factors including the currency in

which the subsidiary sells its products the market in which the subsidiary operates and the currency in which the subsidiarys financing is denominated Based on

liese factors management has determined that the U.S dollar is the functional currency for Globe Metales The U.S dollar was also the functional currency for Globe

5Ietais prior to its divestiture The functional currency for Yonvey is the Chinese rcnminbi Yonveys assets and liabilities arc translated using current exchange rates

ri
effect at the balance sheet date and for income and expense accounts using average exchange rates The functional currency for Quebec Silicon is the Canadian

dollar Quebec Silicons assets and liabilities are translated using current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for income and expense accounts using

verage exchange rates Resulting translation adjustments arc reported as separate component of stockholders equity Translation gains and losses arc recognized on

.ransactions in currencies other than the subsidiarys functional currency and included in the consolidated statement of income for the period in which the exchange

-ates changed

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash Securities with contractual maturities of three months or less when

purchased are cash equivalents The carrying amount of these securities approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments

Refer to note Business Combinations Investments and Divestitures and note 16 Stockholders Equity for supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and

hnancing activities

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market value which does not exceed net realizable value Cost of inventories is determined either by the first-in

first-out method or by the average cost method When circumstances indicate potential recoverability issue tests are performed to assess the market value and as

necessary an inventory write-down is recorded for obsolete slow moving or defective inventory Management estimates market and net realizable value based on

current and expected future selling prices for our inventories as well as the expected utilization of
parts

and supplies in our manufacturing process

Properly Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of assets The

estimated useful lives of property plant and equipment are as follows

Range of

Useful Lives

Asset ty
2t to

.aiid nipros nients and land use rights ears

35 to

Buildings 40 years

Man fact tiring cqtii pment to 25 ears

10 to

Furnaces 20 years

thcr to car

Costs that do not extend the life of an asset materially add to its value or adapt the asset to new or different use are considered repair and maintenance costs and

expensed as incurred

Cost for mineral properties and mine development costs which are incurred to expand capacity of operating mines or to develop new mines are capitalized and

charged to operations based on the units-of production method over the estimated proven and probable reserve tons and based on the average useful life of the mine

respectively Mine development costs include costs incurred for site preparation and development of the mines during the development stage

Business Combinations

When the Company acquires business the purchase price is allocated based on the fair value of tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired and

liabilities assumed Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants

tioodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the residual of the excess of the consideration transferred plus the fair value of any noncontrolling interest in the

acquiree at the acquisition date over the fair value cf the identifiable net assets acquired If the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds the purchase price the

resulting bargain purchase is recognized as gain in the statement of income Prior to the adoption of ASC Subtopic 805-10 Business combinations ASC 805-to
the resulting negative goodwill was allocated as pro rata reduction of the values of acquired nonmonetary assets The Company generally engages independent

third-party appraisal firms to assist in determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed Such valuation requires management to make significant

estimates especially with respect to intangible assets These estimates are based on historical experience and information obtained from the management of the

acquired companies These estimates arc inherently uncertain For all acquisitions operating results are included in the consolidated statement of income from the date

If acquisition
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the residual of the excess of the consideration transferred plus the fair value of any noncontrolling interest in

the acquiree at the acquisition date over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired In accordance with ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and 0/her

ASC 350 goodwill is tested for impairment annually at the end of the third quarter and will be tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or

circumstances change that more likely than not would indicate the carrying amount may be impaired Impairment testing for goodwill is done at reporting unit level

Reporting units arc at the reportable segment level or one level below the reportable segment level for our GMI and Other reportable segments and are aligned with

our management reporting structure Goodwill relates and is assigned directly to specific reporting unit

Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in

the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in business combination The excess of the fair value of reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its

assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair

value of goodwill of the reporting unit Refer to note Business Combinations Investments and Divestitures and note Goodwill and Other Intangibles for

additional information

Trade names have indefinite lives and are not amortized but rather tested annually for impairment and written down to fair value as required

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with ASC Topic 360 Properiv Plant and Equipment ASC 360 the Company reviews the recoverability of its long-lived assets such as plant and

equipment and definite-lived intangible assets when events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying value of the asset or asset group may not

be recoverable The assessment of possible impairment is based on the Companys ability to recover the carrying value of the asset or asset group from the expected

future undiseounted pretax cash flows of the related operations The Company assesses the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets at the lowest level

for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities If these cash flows are less than the carrying value of such

asset or asset group an impairment loss is measured based on the difference between estimated fair value and carrying value Assets to be disposed are written down

to the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and depreciation ceases Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including

discounted cash flow models quoted market values and third-party independent appraisals as considered necessary

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense based on the estimated grant date fair value of share-based awards using Black-Scholes option

pricing model Prior to vesting cumulative compensation cost equals the proportionate amount of the award earned to date The Company has elected to treat each

award as single award and recognize compensation cost on straight-line basis over the
requisite service period of the entire award If the terms of an award are

modified in manner that affects both the fair value and vesting of the award the total amount of remaining unrecognized compensation cost based on the grant-date

fair value and the incremental fair value of the modified award are recognized over the amended vesting period

Refer to note 18 Share-Based Compensation for further information on the Companys accounting for share-based compensation

Restructuring Charges

Restructuring activities are programs planned and controlled by management that materially change either the scope of the business undertaken by the Company

or the manner in which business is conducted Restructuring activities include but are not limited to one-time termination benefits provided to current employees that

are involuntarily terminated costs to terminate contract that is not capital lease and costs to consolidate facilities and relocate employees Restructuring charges

are recognized in accordance with ASC Topic 420 Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations ASC 420 which requires liability
for cost associated with an exit or

disposal activity to be recognized at its fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred except for liability for one-time termination benefits that is incurred

over time In periods subsequent to initial measurement changes to restructuring liability are measured using the credit-adjusted risk-free rate that was used to

measure the liability initially

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable

to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit

earryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

diffircnces are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in the statement of income

the period that includes the enactment date Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely
than not that tax benefit will not

be realized

The Company has adopted the amendment to ASC Subtopic 740-10 Income Taxes ASC 740-10 which provides comprehensive model for the recognition

measurement and disclosure in financial statements of uncertain income tax positions that company has taken or expects to lake on tax return Under ASC 740-10

company can recognize the benefit of an income tax position only if it is more likely
than not greater than 50% that the tax position will be sustamed upon tax

examination based
solely on the technical merits of the lax position Otherwise no benefit can be recognized The tax benefits recognized are measured based on the

largest benefit that has greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement Additionally companies are required to accrue interest and

related penalties if applicable on all tax exposures for which reserves have been established consistent with
jurisdictional

tax laws The Company has elected to

recognize interest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as component of its provision for income taxes

Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with ASC Topic IS Ierivatives and Iledging ASC 815 ASC 815 requires that all

derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their respective fair values The Companys derivative instruments consist of an interest rate cap and

interest rate swaps employed to manage interest rate exposures on long-term debt discussed in note Debt and power hedge and foreign exchange forward

contracts to manage commodity price and foreign currency exchange exposures discussed in note 12 Derivative Instruments
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Accounting Pronouncements to be implemented

In June 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive Income ASU
t01I-05 The objective of this amendment is to increase the prominence of other comprehensive income in the financial statements The amendments require entities

report components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either in continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate
ut consecutive statements Additionally the amendments in ASU 2011-05 require an entity to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification

idjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the statements where the components of net income and the components
other comprehensive income are presented In December 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 20 11-12 which deferred the specific

equirements related to the presentation of reclassification adjustments This amendment is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning
ifter December 15 201 We expect the adoption of this ASU will affect financial statement presentation only

In September 2011 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2011-08 Testing Goodwill/br Impairment ASU 2011-08 which amends the guidance in

SC 350-20 The amendments in ASU 2011-08 provide entities with the option of performing qualitative assessment before performing the first step of the two-step

rnpairment test If entities determine on the basis of qualitative factors it is not more likely
than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying

imount then performing the two-step impairment test would be unnecessary However if an entity concludes otherwise then it is required to perform the first
step

of

he two-step impairment test by calculating the fair value of the reporting unit and comparing the fair value with the carrying amount of the reporting unit If the

.arrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its fair value then the
entity

is required to perform the second step of the goodwill impairment test to measure the amount
.f the impairment loss if any ASU 2011-08 also provides entities with the option to bypass the qualitative assessment for any reporting unit in any period and

iroceed directly to the first step of the two-step impairment test ASU 2011-08 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 but early

idoption is permitted The Company does not expect material financial statement implications relating to the adoption of this ASU

Business Combinations Investments and Divestitures

1ow Corning Transactions

On November 2009 the Company sold 100% of its interest in Globe Metais pursuant to purchase agreement entered into on that same date by and among the

Company and Dow Corning The cash received by the Company in connection with the disposition was approximately $65600 which represents purchase price of

75000 less withholding taxes and certain expenses Dow Coming assumed Globe Metais cash balances totaling $16555 and $14000 of export prepayment

linancing The final purchase price was subject to adjustment for changes in working capital as provided for in the purchase agreement which did not result in

ognificant change in the final purchase price

The sale of the Companys equity interest in Globe Metais was executed in connection with the sale ofa49% membership interest in WVA LLC to Dow Coming
he execution of long-term supply agreement and an amendment to an existing supply agreement between Dow Coming and the Company to reduce the amount

equired to be sold in calendar year 2010 to 20000 metric tons of silicon metal

For accounting purposes the Company allocated $75000 of the total purchase price received from Dow Coming to the sale of the equity of Globe Metais and

l00000 to the sale of membership interests in WVA LLC The allocation of total purchase price to the separate transactions was based on the relative fair values of

ilobe Mctais and the membership interests in WVA LLC

ASC 815.40 requires an entity to consolidate all subsidiaries over which it has controlling financial interest and considers changes in the ownership interest

while the
entity retains its controlling financial interest in the subsidiary as equity transactions resulting in no gain or loss recognition in the statement of income As

he Company retained controlling financial interest in WVA LLC no gain has been recognized in net income on the sale of the 49% membership interest Rather

oncontrolling interest has been adjusted to reflect tile change in our ownership interest in WVA LLC The difference between the fair value of the consideration

eceived net of final purchase price adjustments related transaction costs of $2146 and provision for income taxes of $26575 and the amount by which

oncontrolling interest increased has been recognized as tin increase in additional paid-in capital of $44397

Core Metals Group holdings LLC Transactions

On April 2010 the Company pursuant to Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of March 26 2010 the Purchase Agreement purchased from Ospraie

special Opportunities Master Altemative Holdings LLC The Ospraie Fund L.P Ospraie Holdings Inc and the individuals named in the Purchase Agreement all

he ownership interests in Core Metals Delaware limited liability company for approximately $52000 in cash including $15329 borrowed under the Companys
senior revolving credit

facility
The Company engaged third-party appraisal firm to assist in the process of determining the estimated fair value of certain assets

.icquircd The Company finalized the purchase price allocation for the Core Metals acquisition during the quarter ended March 31 2011 Goodwill
totaling $1274 has

teen recorded and assigned to the GMI operating segment

On April 2010 the Company sold Masterloy for $3000 in cash Masterloy was acquired in connection with the Companys acquisition of Core Metals

\4asterloy is producer of ferrovanadmum and ferromolybdenum an ancillary business the Company does not consider critical to its fundamental business strategy

In December 2010 the Company completed the divestiture of its 49% ownership interest in Fluorita de Mexico S.A de CV FDM for $2500 The Company
acquired its ownership interest in FDM in connection with the acquisition of Core Metals FDM operates fluorite ore mine and fluorspar processing plant located in

\lexico an ancillary business the Company does not consider critical to its fundamental business strategy There was no gain or loss associated with the sale of the

.19% ownership interest in FDM as the sales price was equal to the recorded book value of this investment

Vigerian Mining Licenses

In March 2011 the Company made irrevocable advances totaling approximately $17000 to acquire through transfer exploration mining licenses in Nigeria to

nine for manganese ore raw material used in the production of certain silicon and manganese based alloys The transfer process was subject to regulatory

ipprovals which approvals have been received The transfer of the licenses is complete and the Company may now begin to execute its operational plans
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Alden Resources LLC

On July 28 2011 the Company pursuant to three Membership Interest Purchase Agreements dated as of May 27 2011 thc Purchase Agreements purchased

from NGPC Asset holdings II LP NGP Capital Resources Company and all other parties
named in the Purchase Agreements 100% of the membership interest of

Alden Resources LLC Alden and Gatliff Services LLC Gatliff as well as certain royalty interests held by NGP Capital Resources Company for $73200 plus an

additional $6800 that could be payable to NGP Capital Resources Company pursuant to an earn-out payment upon the achievement of certain financial results and

operational metrics The Company financed the acquisition with $55000 of bank debt and $18200 of cash Alden is North Americas leading miner processor and

supplier of specialty metallurgical coal to the silicon and silicon-based alloy industries The acquisition was made in order to secure stable long-term and low-cost

supply of specialty metallurgical coal key ingredient in the production of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys The Company finalized the purchase price

allocation as of June 30 2012 The results of the businesses acquired are included in the GM operating segment

Quebec Silicon

On June 13 2012 the Company closed its acquisition of Becancour Silicon Metal Inc.s ItS 51% equity interest in Quebec Silicon Limited Partnership

QSLP and other working capital assets collectively known as Quebec Silicon The acquisition was financed using $31800 from the Companys new $300000

revolving credit facility
discussed in note Debt and $8803 cash The Company will operate Quebec Silicons silicon metal plant and will purchase approximately

SI of its linished goods output at price approximately equal to the fully loaded cost of production and sell the material to third party customers Dow Corning has

the right to purchase the other 49% of the plants output at price approximately equal to the
fully

loaded cost of production This arrangement is similar to the

Companys existing joint venture with Dow Corning at its Alloy West Virginia plant The Company has engaged third-party appraisal firm to assist in the process ol

determining the estimated fair value of certain assets acquired Based on the preliminary purchase price allocation goodwill totaling $3062 has been recorded in

connection with the Quebec Silicon acquisition and assigned to the GM operating segment

Inventories

Inventories comprise he following at June 30

2012 2011

1-inished goods
41550 29570

\\ork ui process
40$ 2tt78

Raw materials
6.957 672

art and supplies
14.531 It .43

Total
119441 199292

At June 30 20 24 in inveuior is alued using the Iii siin firstout method and $7tt2J usinu the is eriuc cost method At lii ne 02478 iii

inventory is valued using the Iiri-in first-out method and $6814 using the average cost method

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets eompi se the following at June 30

2012 2011

DeIrred taxes
4681 5766

Income Lis reccis ables
6.450 3777

Value added and other non-income tax receivables 4.370 3391

Restricied cash
4.4tt4

Other
12.414 10538

ot.il

27 IS 27.876

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment net is comprised of the following at June 30

2012 2011

Land land improvements and land use rights
uti

Ru Idi ng and nipros ements
76.395 43.076

Machinery and equipment
175305 93891

Furnaces
3055 36.177

Mineral reserves
55.843

Mine des elopnient
4J 158

Other 4852 3.993

unstruei ion ui progress

23.616 23.74

Property plant and equipment gross
S43 955 307.787

essaccuniulated depreciation depletion and amortization
1.194 77.81 tt

Property plant and equipment net
432761 229.977

Depreciation depletion and amortization expense for the year ended June 30 2012 was $34848 of which $34083 is recorded in cost of goods sold and $765 is

recorded in selling general and administrative expenses respectively Depreciation depletion and amortization expense for the year ended June 30 2011 was

$25055 of which $24330 is recorded in cost of goods sold and $725 is recorded in selling general and administrative expenses respectively Depreciation

depletion and amortization expense for the year ended June 30 2010 was $20362 of which $19912 is recorded in cost of goods sold and $450 is recorded in selling

general and administrative expenses respectively

apitalized interest for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 was $24 $52 and $376 respectively
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and other intangibles presented below have been allocated to the Companys operating segments

Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment during the years ended June30 are as follows

Globe

GMI Metales

Other Intangible Assets

There were no changes in the value of the Companys indelinite lived intangible assets during the years ended June 30 2012 or 2011 The trade name balance is

S477 at June 30 2012 and 2011

Amortization expense of purchased intangible assets for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 was $0 $0 and $310 respectively which is recorded in

eost of goods sold The carrying amount ofdelinite lived intangible assets at both June 30 2012 and June 30 2011 is $0

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates comprise the following

Balance at Balance at

Ownership June 30 June 30
Interest 2012 2011

Equity method investment

Norehem S0.00u 3.244 2.667

ther cost investments

ln crora Ni liii Ic 9.75 3.067 3.067

luversora Diamante 8.40% 2906 2906

Total 9.2 5640

This entity owns 51% interest in Hidroelcctrica Los Nihuiles S.A which is hydroelectric company in Argentina

This entity owns 59% interest in llidroelectrica Diamante S.A which is hydroelectric company in Argentina

Equity income from our Norchem investment was $577 $455 and $257 respectively for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 which is included in

ther income

Solsil Other Total

Balance at June 30 2010

oodv ill 10.41tS 14.313 7.656 7.307 09.65

Accumulated impairment loss 57656 57656
30.405 14.3 13 7.307 52.025

core Metals purchase price allocation adjustments 1.124 1124

oreign exelainge rate ch.inges 354 54
Balance at June 3O 2011

JOOd5 ill 31.529 4.313 57.656 7.661 1.159

Accumulated impairment loss 57656 5756
31.529 4.313 7.661 53.503

uebec Silicon acquisition -- 3063

oreign exchange rate chancs l7 174

Balance at June 30 2012

ooth ill 34.5 14.11 57.666 7.536 4.396

Accumulated impairment loss 57656 57 656

34.591 14.313 7.836 56.740
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Debt

Short- Term Debt

Short-term debt comprises the following

Weighted

Outstanding Average Unused

Balance Interest Rate Credit Line

June3O2012

Type debt

Thqojt financing
9269

Other 317 5.00%
_____________

Total
9269

June 302011

Type debt

Expcrt financing 731 2.75% 8310

Other 363 8.0Oo
_____________

Total
1094 8319

/xport Financing Agreements The Companys Argentine subsidiary maintains various short-term export financing agreements Generally these arrangements

are for periods ranging between seven and eleven months and require the Company to pledge as collateral certain export accounts receivable

Revolving Credit Agreements

summary of the Companys revolving credit agreements at June 30 2012 is as follows

Weighted

Outstanding Average Unused Total

Balance Interest Rate Commitment Commitment

Revolving multi-currency credit facility 128163 2.00% 171831 300000

Revolving credit facility
9000 2.39% 11000 20000

Revolving credit agreentent 3423 500% 11417 14640

On May 31 2012 the Company entered into credit agreement which provides for $300000 five-year revolving multi-currency credit
facility

which includes

provisions for the issuance of standby letters of credit $10000 sublimit for swinglinc loans and $25000 sublirnit letter of credit facility
The credit facility

refinanced existing debt and closing costs of $96550 and financed the acquisition of Quebec Silicon of $31800 The credit facility currently provides an additional

$171800 of borrowing capacity At the Companys election the credit facility may be increased from time to time by an amount up to $125000 in the aggregate

such increase may be in the form of term loans or increases in the revolving credit line The agreement contains provisions for adding domestic and foreign

subsidiaries of the Company as additional borrowers under the credit facility The agreement terminates on May 31 2017 and requires no scheduled prepayments

before that date The Company classifies borrowings under this credit facility as long-term liabilities

Interest on borrowings under the credit agreement is payable at the Companys election at either base rate the higher ofi the U.S federal funds rate plus

0.50% per annum ii the Administrative Agents prime rate or iiian adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate for loans with one month interest period plus I.00

per annum plus margin ranging from 0.75c to l.50 per annum such margin determined by reference to the leverage ratio set forth in the credit agreement or

the adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate plus margin ranging from I.75o to 2.SOo per annum such margin determined by reference to the leverage ratio set

forth in the credit agreement ertain commitment fees arc also payable under the credit agreement The credit agreement contains various covenants They include

among others maximum total debt to earnings before income tax depreciation and amortization ratio minimum interest coverage ratio and maximum capital

expenditures covenant The credit facility
is guaranteed by certain of the Companys domestic subsidiaries the Guarantors Borrowings under the credit agreement

are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company and the iuarantors including certain real property equipment accounts receivable and inventory

and the stock of certain of the Companys and the Guarantors subsidiaries

The ompany was in compliance with the loan covenants at June 30 2012 except as related to restrictions on capital expenditures The ompany received

waiver for the restriction limiting capital expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30 2012

On October 2010 the Company entered into $15000 revolving credit facility and utilized proceeds from borrowings under the revolving credit facility to

repay the Companys $5880 short-term notes payable to Dow Coming On March 52012 the Company entered into an agreement to amend the Companys existing

revolving credit facility The amended agreement provides for $20000 revolving credit facility Total borrowings under this revolving credit focility were $9000 at

June 30 2012 Interest on advances under the revolving credit facility accrues at LIBOR plus an applicable margin percentage or at the Companys option prime plus

an applicable margin percentage The credit facility is subject to certain restrictive and financial covenants which include limits on additional debt maximum ratio

of debt to earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortiiation and minimum net worth The Company was in compliance with the loan covenants at June 30

2012 The Company classifies borrowings under this revolving credit facility as current liabilities as the arrangement is payable in full upon the earlier of 10 business

days following written demand by the lender or the agreements expiration on June 30 2013

The Companys subsidiary Quebec Silicon entered into revolving credit agreement dated October 2010 and amended on November 23 2011 which provides

for up to $15000 anadian Dollars to fund Quebec Silicons working capital requirements Funding under the revolving credit agreement is available upon request at

any time up to the full amount of the unused credit commitment and subject to continued compliance Interest on borrowings under the credit agreement is payable at

variable rate of Canadian prime plus 2.00c 5.OOo at June 30 2012 payable quarterly The credit agreement expires on October 2013 and may be terminated

earlier at the lenders discretion All of Quebec Silicons assets properties and revenues have been pledge as security for Quebec Silicons obligations under the

revolving credit agreement As of June 30 2012 $3223 $3304 anadian Dollars was outstanding under the facility
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On March 30 201 certain of the Companys domestic subsidiaries the Borrowers entered into an agreement to amend and restate the Companys existing

senior credit facility and senior term loan The amended and restated senior credit agreement provides for $90000 revolving credit facility subject to defined

borrowing base and matures on March 30 2014 This
facility includes provision for the issuance of standby letters of credit and $10000 sublimit for swingline

loans The facility may be increased from time to time by an amount up to $10000 in the aggregate at the Companys election subject to approval by the existing or

vdditional lenders Interest on borrowings under the credit agreement is payable at the Companys election at either base rate the higher of the U.S federal funds

rate plus 0.50% per annum and the issuing banks prime rate plus margin of 1.50% per annum or LIBOR plus margin of 2.25% per annum Certain

ommitment fees are also payable under the credit agreement The facility is guaranteed by certain of the Borrowers subsidiaries and borrowings under the credit

igreemcnt arc collateralized by the Borrowers cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable and inventories and the stock of their subsidiaries Outstanding
balances on this term loan were paid down and refinanced with the revolving multi-currency credit

facility the Company entered into on May 31 2012

See note 12 Derivative Instruments for discussion of derivative financial instruments entered into to reduce the Companys exposure to interest rate

Iluctuations on outstanding debt

Long-Term Debt

The Companys subsidiary GBG Holdings LLC entered into three-year term loan in an aggregate principal amount of $50000 in July 2011 Interest on the

tnn loan accrues at LIBOR plus an applicable margin percentage Outstanding balances on this term loan were paid down and refinanced with the revolving multi

urrency credit facility the Company entered into on May 2012

Fair Value of Debt

The recorded carrying values of our debt balances approximate fair value given our debt is at variable rates tied to market indicators or is short-terni in nature

10 Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities comprise the following at June 39

2012 2011

Accrued wages bonuses and benefits 35 11.877

\cquired coiitract obligations 7.173

Deferred revenue 4909
.\ccrued income taxes 384 42S7
Current portion of

capital lease obligations 2544
urrcnt portion of reta ned acq uisit inn contingencies .479 093

Accrued insurance 297 758

ccrucd propert taxes 149 61

Accrued professional fees 524 1.093

.ekrred taxes 49 36

Other
5497 4362

itil 40.602 34.475

11 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities comprise the following at June 30

2012 2011

cerued pension and postretirement bene1it liability 34076 7716
apital lcasc obliations 11.742

Acquired contract obligations 10949
lietaincd acquisition contingencies 4.931 579
Asset retirement obligations 3424
ther

Sfi 3.717

lotal 7080t 17224

12 Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into derivative instruments to hedge certain interest rate currency and commodity price risks The Company does not engage in interest rate

urrency or commodity speculation and no derivatives arc held for trading purposes All derivatives are accounted for using mark-to-market accounting The

ompany believes it is not practical to designate its derivative instruments as hedging instruments as defined under ASC Subtopic 815-10 Derivatives and fledging

ASC 815 Accordingly the Company adjusts its derivative financial instruments to current market value through the consolidated statement of income based on the

lair value of the agreement as of period-end Although not designated as hedged items as defined under ASC 815 these derivative instruments serve to significantly

rIfsct the Companys interest rate currency and commodity risks Gains or losses from these transactions offset gains or losses on the assets liabilities or

ansactions being hedged No credit loss is anticipated as the counterparties to these agreements are major financial institutions that are highly rated

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on certain of its short-term and long-term debt obligations The Company has
historically

iiiliied interest rate swaps and interest rate cap agreements to reduce our exposure to interest rate fluctuations All interest rate derivatives were settled when the

ornpany closed on the $300000 revolving multi-currency credit facility discussed in note Debt
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Joreign Currenry Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk
arising

from changes in currency exchange rates as result of its operations outside the United States principally in

Argentina China and Canada portion of the Companys net sales generated from its non-U.S operations is denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar

Most of the Companys operating costs for its non-U.S operations are denominated in local currencies principally the Argentine peso and the Chinese renminbi

Consequently the translated U.S dollar value of the Companys non-U.S dollar net sales and related accounts receivable balances and our operating costs are

subject to currency exchange rate fluctuations Derivative instruments are not used extensively to manage this risk At June 30 2012 the Company had foreign

exchange forward contracts covering approximately 7500 Euro expiring at dates ranging from September 2012 to November 2012 at an average exchange rate of

1.30 Canadian dollar to 1.00 Euro

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to price risk for certain raw materials and energy used in its production process The raw materials and energy that the Company uses are

largely
commodities subject to price volatility

caused by changes in global supply and demand and governmental controls Derivative financial instruments are not

used extensively to manage the Companys exposure to fluctuations in the cost of commodity products used in its operations The Company attempts to reduce the

impact of increases in its raw material and energy costs by negotiating long-term contracts and through the acquisition of companies or assets for the purpose ol

increasing its access to raw materials with favorable pricing terms

In June 2010 the Company entered into power hedge agreement on 175440 MWh notional amount of electricity representing approximately 20% of the total

power required by our Niagara Falls New York plant This hedge covers our expected needs not supplied by the facilitys long-term power contract over the term of

the hedge agreement The notional amount decreases equally per month through the agreements expiration on June 30 2012 Under the power hedge agreement the

Company fixed the power rate at $39.60 per MWh over the life of the contract In October 2010 the Company entered into power hedge agreement on an 87600

MWh notional amount of electricity also ftr power required at our Niagara Falls New York plant The notional amount decreases equally per month from the

agreements July 2012 effective date through its expiration on June 30 2013 Under this power hedge agreement the Company fixed the power rate at $39.95 per

MWh over the life of the contract

The effect of the Companys derivative instruments on the consolidated statements of income is summarized in the fillowing table

2012 2010

Interest rate derivatives 19 252 1231 Interest exnse

ui eign exchange for ard contracis 20 772 Foreign change gain loss

Power he1ge 27 173 243 cost of goods sold

Loss Gain Recognized

During

the Years Ended June30

2011

Location

of Loss Gain

The fair values of the Companys derivative instruments at June 30 2012 are summarized in note 19 Fair Value Measures The liability associated with the

Companys power hedge of $742 is included in other long-term liabilities and the liability
associated the Companys foreign exchange forward contracts of $20 is

included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities The company holds no interest rate derivatives at June 30 2012

13 Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

The Companys subsidiary GMI sponsors three noncontribotory defined benefit pension plans covering certain employees These plans were frozen in 2003 The

Companys subsidiary Core Metals sponsors noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering certain employees This plan was closed to new participants in

April 2009

The Companys subsidiary Quebec Silicon sponsors contributory defined benefit pension plan and postretirement benefit plan for certain employees based on

length of service and remuneration Postretirement benefits consist of group insurance plan covering plan members for life insurance disability hospital medical

and dental benefits

The Companys funding policy has been to contribute as necessary an amount in excess of the minimum requirements in order to achieve the Companys long-

term funding targets During the years ended June 30 2012 and 2011 the Company made contributions of $2482 and $1080 respectively to the pension plans

The Company uses June 30 measurement date for these defined benefit plans
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Benefit Obligations and Funded Status The following provides reconciliation of the benefit obligations plan assets and funded statos of the plans at June 30
2012 and 2011

Nonpension Postretirement

Pension Plans Plan

2012 2011 2012 2011

hange in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at beginning of year 30218 28367

Acquisition of business 23827 11906
Interest cost 1553 1439
Servicecost 102 114

Amendments 465

Actuarial loss 6860 1498

Benefits paid 1430 1400
____________ ____________

Btnefltobligationsatendofycar 01595 30218 11906

Change in plaamuts
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 22502 19249

Acquisition of business 14328
Actual gain on plan assets 1543 3573

Employer contributiosts 2482 1080
Benefits paid 1430 1400

___________ ___________
Fair value of plan assets ai end of year 39425 22502 $__________ __________

smded stattis at end of year
Fair value of plan assets 39425 22502
Benefit obligations 61595 30218 11906

Funded status 22170 7716 11906

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of

Noneurrentliability 22170 7716 11802
Current liability 104

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 13008 6356

All of our pension and postretirement plans are underfunded and have been underfunded for all years presented The amounts recognized in other comprehensive

lass income consist entirely of net actuarial loss during the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 and totaled $6652 $1066 and $1402 respectively

At June 30 2012 and 2011 the accumulated benefit obligations were $61595 and $30218 respectively for defined benefit pension plans and $11906 and $0
rspeetively for the defined postretirement benefit plan

Net Periodic Pension Expense The components of net periodic pension expense benefit for the Companys defined benefit pension plans are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Interest cost 1553 1439 1285
Service cost 102 114 26

Expeetedrotumonplanasscts 1737 1487 1075
Amortization of net loss 866 678 572

Net periodic pension expense 784 744 808

In fiscal year 2013 actuarial net losses of approximately $1774 are expected to be recognized into periodic benefit cost from accumulated other comprehensive
Iss

A.s.sotnptions and Other Data The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at June 30 2012 and 2011 follow

Nonpension Postretirement

Pension Plans Plans

2012 2011 2012 2011

tliscountrate 3.5%-5.0% 5.25% -530% 5.10%

The discount rate used in calculating the present salue of our pension plan obligations is developed based on the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve for both the

CMI plans and Core Metals plan and the Mereer Yield Curve for Quebec Silicon pension and postretirement benefit plans and the expected cash flows of the benefit

fayments

The assumptions used to determine net periodic expense for the Companys defined benefit pension plans for years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 are as

Iluws

2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 5.00% 5.30% 5.25% 5.85% 6.25%

speeted retum on plan assets 5.5000 8.00% 8.00 8.50 8.00 8.50

Expected return on plan assets is determined based on managements expectations of long-term average rates of retum on funds invested to provide for benefits

eluded in the projected benefit obligations In determining the expected retum on plan assets the Company takes into account historical retums plan asset

allocations and related investment strategies as well as the outlook for inflation and overall fixed income and equity retums

The Company expects to make discretionary eontnbutions of approximately $4128 to the pension plans for the year ending June 30 2013
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The following reflects the gross benefit payments that are expected to be paid for the benefit plans for the years ended June 30

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Years 2018-2022

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Domestic equity mutual funds

International equity mutual funds

Commingled domestic equity funds

Commingled international equity funds

Fixed income securities

Fixed income mutual funds

Commingled fixed income funds

Real estate mutual funds

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for

Identical Assets

Level

418

437
3707

9348

971

18751

Pension Plans

2555

2788

2981

3193

3305

17398

Significant

Observable Inputs

Level

3253

6339

11082

20674

Nonpension

Postretirement

Plans

104

153

209

259

303

2066

Total

418

4307

3707

3253

6339

9348

11082

971

39425

The fair values of the Companys pension plan assets as of June 30 2011 are as follows

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

Domestic equity mutual funds

International equity mutual funds

Commingled domestic equity funds

Fixcd income securities

Fixed income mutual funds

Commingled fixed income funds

Real estate mutual funds

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for

Identical Assets

Level

341

5083

2573

8212

882

17091

Significant

Observable Inputs

Level

3374

2037

5411

Total

341

5083

2573

3374

8212

2037

882

22502

See note 19 Fair Value Measures fir additional disclosures related to the fair value hierarchy The Company held rio level assets during the year

Other Benefit Planc

The Company administers healthcare benefits for certain retired employees through separate welfare plan requiring reimbursement from the retirees

The Companys subsidiary GMI provides two defined contribution plans 401k plans that allow for employee contributions on pretax basis During fiscal

year 2008 the Company agreed to match 25 of participants contributions up to maximum of of compensation Company matching contributions for the years

ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 were $330 $202 and $223 respectively Additionally subsequent to thc acquisition of Core Metals as discussed in note

Business Acquisitions Investments and Divestitures the Company began sponsoring the Core Metals defined contribution plan Under the plan the Company may

make discretionary payments to salaried and non-union participants in the form of profit sharing and matching funds Company matching contributions for the years

ended June 3020122011 and 2010 were $102 $111 and $26 respectively

Other benefit plans offered by the Company include Section 125 cafeteria plan for the pretax payment of healthcare costs and flexible spending arrangements

The accumulated nonpension postretirement benefit obligation has been determined by application of the provisions of the Companys health care and life

insurance plans including established maximums relevant actuarial assumptions and health care cost trend rates projected at 8.5c for fiscal 2013 and decreasing to an

ultimate rate of 4.5 in fiscal 2027 The effect of loo increase in health care cost trend rate on nonpensiun postretirement benefit obligation is $2801 The cfici ol

decrease in health care cost trend rate on nonpension postretirement benefit obligation is $2134

The Companys overall strategy is to invest in high-grade securities and other assets with limited risk of market value fluctuation In general the Companys

goal is to maintain the following allocation ranges

Equity securIties 55 70%

Fixed income securities
30 40

Realestate
510

The fair values of the Companys pension plan assets as of June 30 2012 arc as follows
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14 Income Taxes

The sources of income before provision for income taxes and income attributable to noneontrolling interest for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010

crc as follows

2012 2011 2010

U.S operations 73859 87096 21865
Non-U.S operations 12777 5618 32942

Total 86636 92714 $4807

lhe components of current and deferred income tax expense are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Current

Federal 13506 16113 10471

State 1996 1982 2686

Foreign 3946 4355 14446

Total current 1944 22450 27603

Deferred

Federal 8257 12622 3745
State 1244 1107 3315
Foreign 189 191

Total deferred 9312 13538 7064
Total provision for income taxes 28760 35988 20.539

The following is reconciliation stated in percentage of the U.S statutory federal income tax rate to our effective tax rate for the years ended June 30 2012

2111 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Federal statutory rate 35.0% 5.0% 35.0%

State taxes net of federal benefit 2.4 2.6 3.6
foreign tax holiday and rate differential 1.8 0.7 2.3

hange in valuation allowance 1.1 0.2 5.5

Domestic production activities deduction 1.9 17 1.2
Other items 1.6 2.4 0.5

EffŁctivetaxtate 33.2% 38.8% 37.5%

The Company operated under tax holiday in Argentina where the Companys manufacturing income was taxed at preferential rate which varied based on

froduction levels from the Companys Argentine facilities compared to statutory rate of 35 The tax holiday in Argentina expired in June 2012 For the year

cndcd June 30 2012 the foreign tax holiday in Argentina provided benefit of $144 to net income and no impact to camings per share

As of June 30 2012 we had approximately $80000 of undistributed foreign camings We intend to continue to reinvest eamings outside the U.S for the

foreseeable future and therefore have not recognized any U.S tax expense on these eamings

Significant components of the Companys deferrecL tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at June 30 2012 and 2011 consist of the following

2012 2011

1eferred tax assets

Inventories 3.676 2414
Accounts receivable 198 139

Accruals 9322 6673
Deferred Revenue 178 298

Net operating losses and other carryforwards 16223 17999

Other assets 901 259

Share-based compensation 5104 4868

Gross deferred tax assets 35602 32650

Valuation allowance 10340 8754
Net deferred tax assets 25262 23896

Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets 46257 39340
Prepaid expenses 1861 899
Intangibles 1147 974

Total deferred tax liabilities 49265 41213
Net deferred tax liabilities 24003 17317

Fhc Company has tax benefits for net operating loss carry forwards NOLs portion of which are subject to various limitations which expire at various dates in

the future The Companys NOLs and expiration dates at June 30 2012 are as follows

Amount Expires

Federal 23204 2024 through 2026

State 105123 2013 through 2031

Foreign 9074 2013 through 2021

53



The Company maintains valuation allowances where it is more likely
than not that all or portion of deferred tax asset will not be realized Changes in valuation

allowances are included in our tax provision in the period of change In determining whether valuation allowance is warranted the Company evaluates factors such

as prior earnings history expected future earnings carry back and carry forward periods and tax strategies
that could potentially enhance the likelihood of the

realization of deferred tax asset For the year ended June 30 2012 the increase in the valuation allowance of$l586 was primarily attributable to thc Companys net

operating loss carryforwards in China and corresponding adjustment to the valuation allowance resulting in no net impact on the Companys provision fbr income

taxes For the year ended June 30 2011 the decrease in thc valuation allowance of $4743 was primarily attributable to decrease in the Companys net operating loss

carryforwards in China due to taxable income in 2011 and corresponding adjustment to the valuation allowance resulting
in no net impact on the Companys

provision for income taxes

The total valuation allowance atiune 30 2012 2011 and 2010k l0340 $8754 and $13497 respectively ind consists ofthc following

2012 2011 2010

Iedenul NOLs 4.100 4100 3848

State
57 19 1.055

Foicigil NOLs 2.787 1.229 5781

cdcril credits
3t 235 463

State credits 21O .37 2350

otil
0.i40 .754 13.497

The Company files consolidated U.S income tax return and tax returns in various state and local jurisdictions Our subsidiaries also file tax returns in various

foreign jurisdictions The Companys principal jurisdictions include the U.S Canada Argentina and China The number of open tax years subject to examination

varies depending on the tax jurisdiction The Companys major taxing jurisdictions and the related open tax years subject to examination arc as follows the U.S from

2009 to present Argentina from 2006 to present and China from 2009 to present

icncral accounting principles relating to uncertain income tax positions prescribe minimum recognition threshold tax position is required to meet before being

recognized and provides guidance on the derecognition measurement classification and disclosure relating to income taxes The following is tabular reconciliation

of the total amount of unrecogniicd tix benefits for thc year excluding iiitCicsi and penalties

2012 2011 2010

Balance at the beginning of the year
774 2039

iross increases 6r prior scar tax positions
206 2.039

Gross decreases for prior year tax positions 252 3.471
_____________

774
Italincc .it thc cud ol he car _______________________ _______________________ _______________________

The Company has elected to include interest and penalties in its income tax expense Included in our liability
for uncertain tax positions are interest and penalties

of $76 $145 and $336 for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 respectisclv For the years ended June 2012 2011 and 2010 we recognized $42

$149 and $268 respectively of interest and penalties in income tax benefit/provision The Company bcliescs that it is reasonably possible that approximately $146

of its currently remaining uncertain tax position liability maybe recognized within the next twelve months The pornoil ol uncertain tax positions as of June 30 2012

that would ifrecognized impact the effective tax rate was $522 $774 and $629 as ofJunc 30 2012 2011 md 2010 respcctiscls

IS Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Contingencies

The Company is subject to various lawsuits claims and proceedings that arise in the normal course of business including employment commercial

environmental safety and health matters as well as claims associated with our historical acquisitions and divestitures Although it is not presently possible to

determine the outcome of these matters in the opinion of management the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have material adverse effect on the

Companys consolidated financial position results of operations or liquidity

During the year ended June 30 2011 the Company made escrow deposits and received payments totaling $2038 and accrued $4249 for working capital
claims

associated with our historical acquisitions

Environmental contingencies

It is the Companys policy to accrue for costs associated with environmental assessments remedial efforts or other environmental liabilities when it becomes

probable that liability has been incurred and the costs can be reasonably estimated When liability for environmental remediation is recorded such amounts will be

recorded without giving effect to any possible future recoveries At June 30 2012 there are no significant liabilities recorded for environmental contingencies With

respect to the cost for ongoing environmental compliance including maintenance and monitoring such costs are expensed as incurred unless there is long-term

monitoring agreement with governmental agency in which case liability is established at the inception of the agreement

Asset Retirement Obligations

As of June 30 2012 and 2011 the Company has recorded asset retirement obligation accruals for mine reclamation and closure costs totaling $5731 and $888

respectively There were no assets that were legally
restricted for purposes of settling asset retirement obligations at June 30 2012 or 2011

Employee Contracts

As of June 30 2012 the Company had 1493 employees The Companys total employees consist of 458 salaried employees and 1035 hourly employees and

include 665 unionized employees 44.5% of the workforce is covered by collective bargaining agreements and 17.3% of the workforce is covered by collective

bargaining agreements expiring within one year of June 30 2012
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Power Commitments

Electric power is major cost of the Companys prodoction process as large amoonts of electricity are rcqoircd to operate arc fomaces sommary of electric

cower commitments follows

Facility Supplier Terms Price Structure Capacity

Alloy West Virginia Appalachian Power Through October30 2012 1-year Published tariff rate 110MW interruptible

termination notice

Alloy West Virginia Brookfield Power Ihroogh December 31 2021 Fixed rate 100 MW hydropower
Beverly Ohio American Electric Power Evergreen 1-year termination Published tariff rate 2.5 MW firte

notice 85MW interruptible

Niagara Falls New York New York Power Aothority Throogh September 30 2021 Based on the FP and RP 32.6 MW replacement

commodity agreement 7.3 MW expansion

Selmn Alabama Alabama Power Evergreen 1-year termination Published tariff rate 2.15 MW firm

notice 40.85 MW intemtptible

Itridgeport Alabama Tennessee Valley Aothority Throogh April 30 2020 2-year Fixed rate reset annoally 10MW firm

termination notice 30MW
interroptible

Itecancour Quebec 1-fydro Quebec Through November 32012 Published tariff rate 20 MW firm

80MW interruptible

On Febroary 24 2011 the Company entered into hydropower contract extension agreement with the New York Power Aothority Under the terms of this

commodity porehase agreement the Company will be sopplied op to maximom of 40000 kW of hydropower from the Niagara Power Project to operate its Niagara

ills New York facility The hydropower will be sopplied at preferential power rates p1os market-based delivery charges throogh September 30 2021 Under the

Lrms of the contract the Company has committed to specified employment power otilization and capital investment lesels which if not met coold redoce the

Companys power allocation from the Niagara Power Project

Joint Development Supply Agreement

On Apnl 24 2008 the Companys sobsidiaries Solsil and GMI entered into technology license joint development and sopply agreement with BP Solar

Iritemational Inc BP Solar for the sale of solar grade silicon As
part

of this agreement BP Solar paid Solsil $10000 as an advance for research and development

services and facilities constroction In accordance with ASC 605.25 revenoe associated with this agreement was deferred ontil specific contract milestone had been

schieved or research development services were soccessfol in redocing manofaetoring costs Revenoe woold then woold be recognized ratably as prodoct was
celivered to BP Solar or if research and development services were performed hot onsoccessfol deferred ontil contract expiration In November 2010 the

tchnology license joint development and sopply agreement was terminated $9400 in previoosly deferred revenoe was recognized by the Company and the

ompany made $600 payment to BP Solar

Lease Commitments

fhe Company leases certain machinery and eqoipment aotomobiles railcars and oflice space For the years ended Jone 30 2012 2011 and 2010 lease expense

\as $3527 $3173 and $2191 respectively

Minimom rental commitments onder noneaneelable operating and capital leases ootstanding at Jone 30 2012 for the fiscal years of 2013 onward are as follows

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Operating lease obligations 3266 2053 846 18

apital lease obligations 2544 2562 2445 2505 2213 2029

16 Stockholders Equity

Common Stock

In Aogost 2009 the Company closed on an initial poblic offering on the NASDAQ Global Select Market of 16100000 shares of its common stock at $7.00 per

share Of the shares offered 5600000 new shares were offered by the Company and 10500000 existing shares were offered by selling stockholders which ineloded

100000 shares sold by the
selling

stockholders porsoant to the exercise of the ondcrwriters over-allotment option Total proceeds of the offering to the Company
\vere $36456 net of onderwriting discoonts and commissions

totaling $2744

Preferred Stock

The Company is aothorized to issoc one million shares of preferred stock with soch designations voting and other rights and preferences as may be determined

trom time to time by the board of directors To date no preferred stock has been issoed by the Company

Warrants

In connection with the Companys initial poblic offering on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange on October 2005 the Company sold

3.3500000 onits consisting of one share of the Companys common stock and two redeemable common stock porchase warrants Also in connection with this initial

public offenng the Company issoed an option to porchase 1675000 onits individoally UPO at an exercise price of $7.50 per UPO Each UPO consists of one share

etthe Companys common stock and two redeemablc common stock porchase warrants All of the Companys warrants had an exercise price of $5.00 per common
share and were schedoled to expire on October 200g

Doring the year ended Jone 30 2008 699440 of the warrants issoed in connection with the Companys initial poblic offering were exercised and an additional

100262 warrants and 50131 common shares were issued in connection with cashless exercise of 67458 UPOs
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During the year ended June 30 2009 166668 of the warrants issued in connection with the Companys initial public offering were exercised and an additional

485505 warrants and 242753 common shares were issued in connection with cashless exercise of 282128 IJPOs Also during the year ended June 30 2009 the

Company executed warrant exchange program under which it agreed to exchange 5.5 warrants for one share of the Companys common stock total of 19164294

warrants were converted to 3484417 common shares under this exchange program

Prior to the expiration date the Company received exercise notifications from the holders of substantially all of the outstanding warrants and UPOs The holders

of the UPOs exercising their UPOs also immediately exercised the warrants issuable upon the exercise of their UPOs As result of all of these exercises the

Company issued 1775933 shares of common stock to the former holders of the warrants and UPOs and no warrants or UPOs remain outstanding at June 30 2010

The Company received $1497 in cash with respect to these exercises and the remainder of the shares were issued on net cashless basis The sales and issuances of

shares pursuant to the warrant and UPO exercises were deemed to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 by virtue of Section 42 pertaining to

private offirs and sales or Regulation pertaining to foreign offers and sales

The Company has accounted for all warrant transactions as component of stockholders equity

Treasury Stock

In December 2008 the Companys board of directors approved share repurchase program that authorized the Company to repurchase up to $25000 of the

Companys common stock during the ensuing six months The program did not obligate the Company to acquire any particular
amouni of shares 1000 shares were

repurchased at $4.00 per share under this program

In connection with the Companys acquisition of approximately 81% of Solsil in Februaty 2008 562867 of the 5628657 shares issued to the former shareholders

and optionholders of Solsil were placed into escrow pending the attainment of certain milestones In April 2008 281430 of these escrow shares were released based

on the satisfaction of certain conditions Upon expiration of the escrow period in February 2011 the remaining 281437 escrow shares were returned to the Company

and are now included in treasury stock at cost which is equal to their par value

Noncontrol/ing Interest

As discussed in note the Company recorded an increase in noncontrolling interest of $27012 in association with the sale of 49% membership interest in WVA

LLC on November 2009

As discussed in note the Company recorded an increase in noneontrolling interest of $46762 in association with the purchase ofSl% interest in Quebec Silicon

on June 13 2012

Dividend

On September 16 2010 the Companys board of directors approved dividend of $0.15 per common share The dividend totaling $11269 was paid on October

29 2010 to stockholders of record as of October IS 2010

On September 21 2011 the Companys board of directors approved dividend of $0.20 per common share The dividend totaling $15007 was paid on October

28 2011 to stockholders of record as of October 14 2011

So/si Share Purchase

On December 2011 the Company purchased all the shares held by one of Solsils minority partners for $150 Additionally Solsil issued and sold new shares to

the Company for $3500 Subsequent to these stock purchase transactions the Company owns 97.25% of Solsil

17 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are calculated based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the years ended June 30 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively Diluted earnings per common share assumes the exercise of stock options the conversion of warrants and the exercise of UPOs

provided in each case the effect is dilutive

The reconciliation of the amounts used to compute basic and diluted earnings per common share for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 is as fijllows

2012 2011 2010

Bask earnings per share conwutation

Numerator

simattrthitahts th.C

Denomin.itor

Weighted average basic shares outstanding 75038674 74924947 735 1.696

Lta.ic earnings per common share
It 73 0.4

Diluted earnings per share computation

\umeriior

Nd income attributable to Globe Specialty Metals Inc 54.570 52808 34.101

enoiuinaioi

Weighted average basic shares outstanding
75 038.674 74924947 73.51 1.696

lie of dilutis seeurii ie
1.585.218 .398 .254

ares outstanding 76.623892 76624345 74770147

Diluted eamings per common share
0.71 0.69 0.46

The following potential common shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per common share because their effect would be anti-dilutive

2012 2011 2010

Stock option
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18 Share-Based Compensation

Stock Plan

The Companys share-based compensation program consists of the Globe Specialty Metals Inc 2006 Employee Director and Consultant Stock Plan the Stock

Pan The Stock Plan was initially approved by the Companys stockholders on November 10 2006 and was amended and approved by the Companys stockholders

on December 2010 to increase by 1000000 the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the Stock Plan The Stock Plan as amended

provides for the issuance of maximum of 600000C shares of common stock for the granting of incentive stock options nonqualified options stock grants and

share-based awards Any remaining shares available for grant but not yet granted will be carried over and used in the following fiscal years

At June 30 2012 there were 497633 shares available for grant During the year ended June 30 2012 share-based compensation awards were limited to the

issuance of 1013270 nonqualilied stock options and 2676 restricted stock grants All option grants have maximum contractual terms ranging from to 10 years It is

tfe Companys policy to issue new shares to satisfy the requirements of its share-based compensation plan The Company does not expect to repurchase shares in the

future to support its share-based compensation plan

summary of the changes in options outstanding under the Stock Plan for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 is presented below

Weighted-

The weighted average grant date fair value of stock options granted during the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 was $8.97 $7.34 and $4.46

respectively The total intrinsic value of options exerci during the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 was $417 $7194 and $459 respectively

summary of the Companys nonvested options as of June 30 2012 and changes during the year ended June 30 2012 is presented below

Nonvested as of.June 31 2011

Granted

Vested 239313 8.35

1-ortetted and expired _____________________________

Nonvested a.s of June 30.2012 8.93

ftc total fur aluc ut shares ested during the ears ended June 30 20 20 and 20 Itt as 908 $8.397 and $10323 rcspcctis
eI .0 3.27

incentive stock options granted during the year endd June 30 2012 consisted of 918750 options which sest and become exercisable in equal one-sixteenth

increments every quarter from the date of grant for four sears 27600 options which vest and become exercisable in equal one-eighth increments every quarter from

the date of grant for two years 61136 options which vest and become exercisable on December 31 2014 and 5784 options which vested and became exercisable on

Jane 30 2012

The Company estimates the fair value of grants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model The following assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of

stock option awards granted during the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010

spected dis lend eld

ipected volatility

xpccted forfeiture rate

2012 2011 2010

is A55

Number of

Weighted-

Average
Exercise

Price

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term in

Years

Aggregate

Intrinsic

Options Value

Outstanding as of June 30 2009 4.315000 5.12

raitted 60 tOO .4tt

Esereised 98.558 6.25

urleited and expired 1.000 4.00

Outstanding as of June 30 2010 4266442 18

Outstanding as of June 30 2010 4266442 5.18

ranted 7960 6.23

Exercised 878025 6.28

orleited arid expired 6.250 4.00

Outstanding as of June 30 201 3.390.127 4.93

Outstanding as of June 30 201 3.390.127 4.93

ranted .0 3.270

Exercised 3X.000 5.12

urleited and expired

Outstatlding as of June 30 012 465197 8.10 2.65 29690

Exercisable as ofiune 30 2012 3537189 5.67 2.29 29673

Number of

Options

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date Fair

Value

Per Share

ii

1013270 8.97

Iptdttttyrs 300to440% 2.79% 250to343%
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The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield of tero COUPOfl U.S Treasury bonds with terms similar to the expected term of the options The expected dividend

yield far grants is zero given the Companys limited history of dividend issuanccs and the uncertainty of any future dividend amounts if any Since there is limited

historical trading data related to the Companys common stock the expected volatility over the term of the options is estimated using the historical volatilitics of

similar companies The expected forfeiture rate is zero as anticipated forfeitures are estimated to be minimal based on historical data The expected term is the average

of the vesting period and contractual term

For the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 share-based compensation expense was $2482 $1338 after tax $4462 $2407 afier tax and $5712

$3082 after tax respectively The expense is reported within selling general and administrative expenses

As of June 30 2012 the Company has uneamed compensation expense of $6986 before income taxes related to nonvested stock option awards The

unrecognized compensation expense is expected to be recognized over the following periods ending on June 30

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Share based corn 52 238 156 240

Execulive Bonus Plan

The Company issues restricted stock units under the Companys Fxecutivc Bonus Plan These restricted stock units proportionally vest over three years but are

not delivered until the end of the third year The Company will settle these awards by cash transfer based on the Companys stock price on the date of transfer

During the year ended June 30 2012 452142 restricted stock units were granted and as of June 30 2012 487367 restricted stock units were outstanding For the

year ended June 30 2012 share-based compensation expense for these restricted stock units was $1089 $587 after tax The expense is reported within selling

general and administrative expenses The $1219 liability associated with these restricted stock units is included in other long-term liabilities at June 30 2012

19 Fair Value Measures

ASC 820 Fair Value Measures and Disclosures establishes fair value hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements The fair value framework requires the

categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the assumptions inputs used to value the assets or liabilities Level provides the most reliable

measure of fair value whereas Level generally requires significant management judgment The three levels arc defined as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than those included in Level For example quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for

identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets

Level Unobservable inputs reflecting managements own assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the asset or liability For example cash flow modeling

using inputs based on managements assumptions

The Company does not have any assets that are required to be remeasured at fair value at June 30 2012 The following table summarizes liabilities measured at

fair value on recurring basis at June 30 2012

Total Lesel Leel Level

Foreign excoange lorwaro contracts 20

Puss cr hcdie 742 742

Restricted stock units 1282 1282
______________ ______________

utal
2.044 1.282 702

The Company does not base any assets that are required to be remcasured at fair value at June 30 2011 The following table summarizes liabilities measured at

fair valuc on recurring basis it
.lunc 30 2011

olal .e ci el 2_ es ci

Interest rate derivatives 320 20

Posser hedge
II

Restricted stock units 130 30
______________ ______________

load
500 410

Derivative liabilities relate to the interest rate cap and interest rate swap agreements the foreign exchange forward contracts and power hedge agreement

summarized in note 12 Derivative Instruments Fair values are determined by independent brokers using quantitative models based on readily observable market

data

The fair value of restricted stock units is based on quoted market prices of the Company stock at the end of each reporting period

See note Debt for information regarding the fair value of our outstanding debt

20 Related Party Transactions

From time to time the Company enters into transactions in the normal course of business with related parties Management believes that such transactions are at

arms length and for terms that would have been obtained from unaffiliated third parties
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Current and former member of the board of directors are affiliated with Marco International and Marco Realty During the years ended June 30 2012 2011
aid 2010 the Company

Paid Marco Realty $0 $0 and $166 respectively to rent office space for its corporate headquarters in New York City New York

Entered into agreements with Marco Intemational to purchase graphitized carbon electrodes Purchases under these agreements totaled $18136 $24731 and

$21962 respectively At June 30 2012 and 2011 payables to Marco International under these agreements totaled $962 and $2952 respectively

Entered into agreements with Marco International to purchase rare earth Purchases under these agreements totaled $1013 $1001 and $0 respectively At

June 30 2012 and 2011 payables to Marco International under these agreements totaled $0 and $1001 respectively

Entered into agreements to sell ferrosilicon to Marco International Net sales under these agreements totaled $851 $895 and $590 respectively At June 30
2012 and 2011 receivables from Marco Intemational under these agreements totaled $137 and $192 respectively

Entered into agreements to sell calcium silicon powder to Marco International Net sales under these agreements totaled $5.61 $524 and $0 respectively At

June 30 2012 and 2011 receivables from Marco International under these agreements totaled $1115 and $0 respectisely

The Company is afliliated with Norchem Inc Norchem through its 50.0% equity interest During the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company
sold Norchem product valued at $5923 $5575 and $4065 respectively At June 30 2012 and 2011 receivables from Norchem totaled $622 and $576 respectively

Prior to the Companys purchase of majority interest in Ningxia Yonvey Coal Industrial Co Ltd Yonvey Yonveys predecessor had entered into lending
areement with the remaining minonty stockholder At June 30 2012 and 2011 $1112 and $1086 respectively remained payable to Yonvey thiorn this related party

21 Operating Segments

Operating segments are based upon the Companys management reporting structure and include the following six reportable segments

GM manufacturer of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys and provider of specialty metallurgical coal for the silicon metal and silicon-based alloys

industries located in North America

Globe Metais distnbutor of silicon metal manufactured in Brazil This segment includes the historical Brazilian manufacturing operations comprised of

manufacturing plant in Breu Branco mining operations and forest reserves which were sold on November 2009

Globe Metales manufacturer of silicon-based alloys located in Argentina

Solsil manufacturer of upgraded metallurgical grade silicon metal located in the United States

Corporate- general corporate expenses investments and related investment income

Other- operations that do not fit into the above reportable segments and are immaterial for purposes of separate disclosure The operating segments include

Yonveys electrode production operations and cerLain other distribution operations for the sale of silicon metal and silicon-based alloys

Each of our reportable segments distributes its products in both its country of domicile as well as to other international customers The following presents the

iimpanys consolidated net sales by product line for the years ended

2012 2011 2010

Silicon metal
360726 347599 296.763

SI ic inhascd al lii 269.9 236607 148192
Other 74.899 57657 27803

otal 75 544 .863 472658

Segment Data

Summarized financial information for our reportable segments as of and for the years ended June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 are shown in the following tables

2012

Income

Depreciation Operating Loss
and Income Interest Interest Before Capital

Net Sales Aniorlialion Loss Inconie Expense Income Taxes Total .sscts Ependi1ures
iMI 631495 29.261 101542 15807 98297 679cl6 36126
ilobe Mctais

Globe Metales 64063 1766 11.332 49 1145 10422 86302 1926
li.iI 488 984 984 30.057 691

Corpote 424 27268 777 739 5570 469137 f2 675
tilier 28216 2161 491 5113 158 41.538 418
Eliminations 18230

___________
4.315 584 584 4315 369803

____________
705.544 3400f 91.425 243 7.6111 86.636 936.747 41
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Net of capitalized interest

The accounting policies of our operating segments are the same as those disclosed in note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies We evaluate segment

performance principally based on operating income loss Intersegment net sales are not material

Geographic Data

Net sales are attributed to geographic regions based upon the location of the selling unit Net sales by geographic region for the years ended June 30 2012 2011

and 2010 consist of the following

2012 2011 2010

625681 574181 407455

57154 54695 42101

12820

5520

3131 592

14058 ____________
9690

705544
____________

472658

Long-lived assets by geographical region at June 30 2012 2011 and 2010 consist of the following

2011

Income

Depreciation Operating Loss

and Income Interest Interest Before Capital

Net Sales Amortization Loss Income Expense Income Taxes Total Assets Expenditures

549418 20430 103685 1775 102240 384495 31061

15421 397 398 294

62321 1634 13197 1050 12669 82751 1023

9420 488 8670 8670 29.191 165

426 29606 816 470 30086 403177 1226

32325 2077 31 511 428 43317 1564

21042 1604 608 608 1605 264956

641863 25055 94770 214 3198 92714 678269 35039

2010

GMI
ilobe Metais

Globe Metales

Solsil

Corpoite

Other

Eliminations

GM
Globe Metais

Globe Metales

Solsil

Corporate

Other

Eliminations

Income

Depreciation Operating Loss

and Income Interest Interest Before Capital

Iet Sales Amortization Loss Income Expense Income Taxes Total Assets Expenditures

8358279 15812 41126 42 2368 39107 324680 18971

62i26 776 5263 178 525 8579 8192 208

48959 1820 10073 1090 10069 71790 996

20 508 1375 30 1405 30526 1410

122 2815 619 317 2836 415184 1273

12557 1634 4273 569 5036 41508 2863

9283 657 527 527 657 284735

472658 20672 54286 318 4372 54807 607145 22901

United States

Argentina

Brazil

Canada

China

Poland

Total

United Stales

Argentina

Canada

China

Poland

Total

899

12088

641863

2012

330724

31185

100842

26288

939

489978

2011

224556

31054

27524

823

283957

2010

211876

31665

27428

800

271769

Total

Long-lived assets consist of property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation depletion and amortization and goodwill and other intangible assets

Major Customer Data

The following is summary of the Companys major customers and their respective percentages of consolidated net sales for the years ended June 3020122011

and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Dow Cotning
13% 17% 30%

All other customers
87 83 70

100% 100% 100%
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The majority of sales to Dow Coming for the years ended June 30 2012 and 2011 are associated with Dow Comings 49% ownership interest in WVA LLC In

addition the Company maintained four year arrangement in which Dow Coming was to purchase 30000 metric tons of silicon metal per calendar year through

Dccmbcr 31 2010 This contract was amended in November 2008 to provide for the sale of an additional 17000 metric tons of silicon metal to be purchased in

calendar year 2009 The contract was further amended in connection with the Dow Coming transactions discussed in note to reduce the amount required to be sold

in calendar year 2010 to 20000 metric tons of silicon metal In December 2010 the Company agreed to pay $4276 to Dow Coming to settle certain remaining sales

obligations under this contract The settlement cost was recorded in cost of goods sold in December 2010

Sales to Dow Corning are included in the GMI segnient

22 Business Interruption Insurance Recovery

In November 2011 there was fire at the Bndgeport Alabama ferrosilicon plant The Company recorded and received business interruption insurance recovery

in the amount of $450 as of June 30 2012

23 Subsequent Events

On August 17 2012 the Companys Board of Directors approved an annual dividend of $0.25 per common share payable quarterly in September 2012

Dtccmbcr 2012 March 2013 and June 2013 The Board of Directors authorized quarterly dividend of $00625 per share payable on September 19 2012 to

shareholders of record at the close of business on September 52012

On August 17 2012 the Board authorized the Company to offer to amend outstanding options representing the
right to purchase shares issued to directors

officers and current employees pursuant to the Companys 2006 Employee Director and Consultant Stock Plan to permit these options altematively to be settled for

cath or exercised for the issuance of shares at the election of the option holder The Company anticipates that these amendments will result in mark-to-market

accounting with respect to the subject options and the expense associated with these amendments is approximately $24000

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date these financial statements were issued

2.1 Unaudited Quarterly Results

Unaudited quarterly results for the years ended June 30 2012 and 2011 were as follows

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Unaudited
2012

Ni sales 74.862 65547 17 L43 91.698

Operating income 32465 22230 19950 16780
Nci income attributable to ilobc Specialty Metals Inc 20.69$ 3.444 .6 $.82tt

Basic earnings per common share 0.28 0.18 0.15 0.12

Diluied earnings per common share 0.27 tt IS 0.1 tt 12

2011

Net sales 137.352 155775 172802 175934

cratmg income 8.228 20229 36753 29.56t

Net income atiributablc to Globe Specialty Metals Inc 2.162 11.708 23.393 15545
It ic earnings per coinmiin share tt.tt$ 11.16 tt.$ tI.2

Diluted eamings per common share 0.03 0.15 0.30 0.20

2010

Net sales tts.458 tth28 112.456 146.416

Operating income 123ó 30466 3.307 8187
Nci income attributable io ilohc SpcciaIt Metals Inc 5.442 5534 6609

Basic earnings per common share 0.12 0.25 0.01 0.00

iluted carnines eoninioii stiarc 11.12 1.25 tt.tt tt.ti9
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Chief Financial Officer

Stephen Lebowitz
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Alan Kestenbaum
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Franklin Lavin
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Alan Schriber
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Company
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Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph compares the change in the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock

during the period from July 29 2009 the first day our stock began trading on the NASDAQ through June 30 2012

the end of our fiscal year with the cumulative total return on the SP SmailCap 600 Index and SP Metals and

Mining Index The comparison assumes that Sl00 was invested on July 29 2009 in our common stock and in each

of the foregoing indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends if any
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5360

5320

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return Since 1P0
A000g Iobe Specielty Mets SP SreIICep 600 Irdee erd SP Mete6 Mir1rg Irdee
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5240
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SlOO invested on 7/29/09 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends
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Annual Meeting

Globe Specialty Metals Inc will hold its annual meeting of stockholders on Tuesday December 2012
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Globe Specialty Metals Inc is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol GSM

Form 10-K

copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K including the financial statements and the financial

statement schedules filed in August 2012 with the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission may

be obtained without charge to each person solicited upon the written request of any such person by

writing to the Corporate Secretary at One Penn Plaza 250 West 34th Street Suite 4125 New York

NY 10119
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